Eliot Select Board Meeting
Thursday, October 14, 2021 at 5:30 pm
Meeting Room and Use of the Owl for Remote via Zoom

Call to Order:
A. Roll Call:
B. Public Comments:

C. PUBLIC HEARINGS:
1. Adult Use Marijuana Testing Facility Renewal Application, located at 19
Levesque Drive, Map 29, Lot 26.

2. Special Referendum Warrant Articles for Tuesday, November 02, 2021.

D. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s): Regular Meeting Minutes of
September 09, 2021

E. Presentation:
1. Audit Presentation for Fiscal Year 2020
2. Feasibility Study
3. Non-Union Salary Market/Staffing Study

F. Department Head/Committee Report:
1. Assessing Update
2, Aging-In-Place Appointment: Maureen Clark
3. Town Manager Report
4. ARPA Grant Acceptance

. New Business:
Old Business:

T

I. Approval of Warrants:
1. AIPWarrant#23 $ 1,024,556.74
2.AlPWarrant#25 $§ 57,714.82

J. Selectmen’s Report:
1. Seeking Committee Members Listing

K. Executive Session:
L. Adjournment:

To Join Live Zoom Meeting:

Go to Zoom. com
Enter meeting ID Number: 870 8832 8947
Enter meeting Passcode: 656530

Call into the meeting:

Call 1-646-558-8656 You can call into the meeting, enter the same ID and Passcode
from above. Please stay muted, press *9 to speak.

09/16/21



SORREST O ERECE @ C, '-j__

BELEDTHEN S 4 Hﬁil&'
153 2]

Staff Report
Public Hearing CatlLab, LLC- October 14, 2021

Renewal Application for Marijuana Testing Facility

Background: According to Chapter 11.7 (b) of the Marijuana Ordinance, Upon the filing of a
completed application for a marijuana license, the town manager shall immediately schedule a
public hearing on the application before the town select board to occur within 30 days

| received the application on September 23, 2021, so the 30-day requirement has been met.

Issue: To hear public comment in regards to the application during the public hearing, the
Select Board to make a determination to approve or deny application.

This is a renewal application for CAT Lab, LLC. Before the ordinance change in June 2021,
testing facilities did not need a public hearing. This is the reason why this is the first time this
application has come to the Select Board.

Discussion: _All conditions of Section 11-7 (Marijuana Licensing Procedures} have been

satisfied. CAT Lab, LLC. Has an active State License from the Office of Marijuana Policy.

CAT Lab, LLC. Has paid the necessary fees to the Town of Eliot, ME for the renewal.

Fiscal Impact: None

Recommendation: To approve renewal. Sample Motion: “Eliot Select Board approve the
renewal application for CAT Lab, LLC. For a Marijuana Testing Facility, located at 19 Levesque
Drive, Suite #2, Map 29, Lot 26.”

Prepared by: Melissa Albert, Administrative Assistant

Town Manager Recommendation: The Town Manager concurs with the recommendation

Cawol Granfield
Carol Granfield, {ICMA-CM

Interim Town Manager



) Sl icemse  Frow Opd P

3 ¥
Application Received Date: C?/ ”f? 3 / < } Application Complete Date:

Application Number: (Office Use) Pd 42000 A ‘2 2 l;?_ |

TOWN OF ELIOT
Adult Use Marijuana Stores, Cultivation Fagcilities, Manufacturing Facilities,
and Testing Facilities Application

Check the Classification of the Adult Use Marijuana Business:

O Marijuana Store (] Cultivation\ Facility O Manufacturing Facility %Tes’ting Facility

Check the Classification of the Medical Marjjuana Business:

[ Marijuana Store O Cultivation Facility U Manufacturing Facility ﬂ(lTesting Facility

ﬂREGULAR APPLICATION FEE: $1,500 0 EXCHANGE/CONVERSION APPLICATION FEE: $750

Note: [f constructing a new building, contact the Code Enforcement Office.

Note: Marijuana Stores, Cultivation Facilities, Manufacturing Facilities, and Testing facilities are restricted
to certain areas under the Table of Uses in the Town’s Zoning Ordinance and are subject to specific
setbacks in the Town's Adult Use and Medical Marijuana Stores, Cultivation Facilities, Manufacturing
Facilities, and Testing Facilities Ordinance. You must check with the Town's Planning Office for this
information before filing an application for a permit/license.

Note: Each Marijuana License issued shall be effective for one year from the date of Issuance
Note: Renewal applications must be submitted at least 30 days prior to the date of expiration of the annual Local

Marijuana License. An application for the renewal of an expired License shall be treated as a new License
application.

Map and Lot of Subject Property: Map 2% Lot Z6 Zone: (OMpyzet e /

Physical Address of Subject Property: /9 (K& f s Ap Hz //6"7(/-'5’%’# G393

O Corporation O Partnership ;& Limited Liability Company

Name of Business (For additional individual(s), attach sheet listing name(s) with the following information):

CAT(AE LLC

Maiing Address: 2y ppx 123 £ 7 frame o3 g03

Telephone: Jg 2 200 ¢ ¢ Email Address: (/G 88 Cars apirl
Federal Tax |dentification Number: g & <G (;;L

P Attach a photo copy of a recent Passport, Drivers License or State 1D for all applicant(s)

Has the applicant or any officer, partner, director, stockholder, or member of the applicant ever been convicted of a
felony in a federal, State, or other court? 2 Yes ﬂNo If Yes, please provide the following:

Page 1l of7




r Name and Location | Charge Convicted Sentence Date of Last Date of
of Court : of Sentencing Incarceration/Parole/Probation

Has the applicant been denied an application for an adult use or a medicai marijuana license by another
jurisdiction?

O Yes E‘ﬁ[ No [f yes, explain on a separate sheet.

Has the applicant had an adult use or a medical marijuana license suspended or revoked by another jurisdiction?
O Yes )ﬁ No If yes, explain on a separate sheet.

Has any establishment in which an applicant has had an influential interest in the last five years been subject to
either of the following (please check if either apply and include a statement);

[] Been declared by a court of law to be a nuisance

(] Been subject to a court order of closure

'Applicant (s).FuH Le'gall Name: (Attach notarized statement designafing égent(s) if applicable)

d’cﬂ‘; gr}. loss PR ,
elhgAddvess:  Po pox 423 E£/07  fusive 03807

Physical Address:

Telephone: D02 ~ 2 o G@PGOEMail Address: Gy 8@ (ATLAL)C . oA

State Maine Driver's License: o oA Verified Applicant is at least 21 year of age D

Date of Birth: ¢~/ ,» /6 ¢t Social Security Number: <g £ 3 3 3¢~

Name of Property Owner (If different than applicant):

Mailing Address:

Telephone: Email Address:

1 Attach copy of lease of subject property

Property Owner Signature Property Owner Printed Name Date
Do swear/affirm under pgnalty-oftaw thaf you are the designated agent and have permission to execute this
application. ( ‘76
Agents Signature; / 7 g ,/, \

State of Maine, County of York

Name of Notary: W h%‘v@a , A)lb'fzﬁf}’
Melissa Albert

Notary Public State of Maine Notary Publ'c, State of Maine

. 7 My Cortnlssion Explres March 19, 2022
Signature of Notayy: 1. /m,}} My Commission Expires:

[ Attach copy of all current State Marfjuana License(s) if any.

[T If a State of Maine application for a Medical Marijuana Business and/or Adult Use Marijuana Business has been
fited, but has not yet been granted, attach complete copies. Date(s) filed:

Page 2 of 7



Is the applicant proposing to surrender their Medical Marfjuana Business license and entirely convert to an Adult
Use Marijuana Business on their currently licensed premises? [ Yes N_NO

I If Yes, attach proof of surrendered license.

NOTE: That Adult Use and Medical Marijuana businesses cannot be co-located in the same store. Co-location with
cultivation and manufacturing facilities is allowed with restrictions per 28-B M.R.S. §501,

If not included in the Applicant’s state License Application please attach the following:

}iAttested copies of the articles of incorporation and bylaws if the Applicant is a corporation, operating agreement if
the Applicant is a limited liability company, evidence of partnership if the Applicant is a parinership, or articles of
association and bylaws if the Applicant is an association.

0 An affidavit that identifies all owners, officers, members, managers, or partners of the Applicant, thelr ownership
interests, and their places of residence at the time of the application and for the immediately preceding three (3)
years,

0 A release authorized by 16 M.R.S.A. §620 (6), as may be amended, with the application for each Applicant and
for each officer, owner, member, manager, or partner of the Applicant seeking a Local License.

Is there currently a Medical Marijuana Business on the subject property that began operating before the enactment
of 28-B MR.S. ¢. 17 [ Yes /&No

O If Yes, attach evidence that a Medical Marijuana Business had commenced on the property prior to
December 31, 2016.

Is the proposed Adult Use Marijuana Business is within 1,000 feet of a public or preexisting private school, and/or
within 500 feet of a college, daycare, hospital, religious institution, designated recreation area for children up io 18
years in age, or municipal “safe zone" per 30-A M.R.S. §3253? [ Yes No

lﬁ Attach a Description of Plan for developing and operating an Adult Use Marijuana Store, Cultivation Facility,
Manufacturing Facility, or Testing Facility.

Anticipated date for project commencement: /4 - 8727 yAnticipated date for project completion:

}ZLAttach a sketch showing the subject premises, including building footprint, interior layout with floor space to be
occupied by the business, and parking plan. The sketch must be drawn to scale with marked dimensions.

;ELAttach a copy of a Town Tax Map depicting the subject's property lines and any structures containing existing
Marijuana Businesses within 1,000 feet of the subject property; the property lines of any public or preexisting private
school within 1,000 of the subject's property lines; and the property lines of any established college, daycare,
hospital, religious institution, designated recreational area for children up to 18 years, or municipal “safe zone" per
30-A M.R.S. §3253 within 500 feet of the subject's property lines.

State the estimated average number of vehicles per day anticipated on or using the site: (Include owner(s),
employee(s), landlord(s), contractor(s), and staff). ' L

State the number of parking spaces planned for the site: 7 v

Note: The nominal parking dimension is 9x18'. For more information regarding accessible parking standards, contact the
Town's Pianning Dept. at 439-1813.

Page3of7



Describe method of sewage disposal for proposed site:

TOL/n Q) sGF

Describe method of water supply to proposed site:

7004/ b DT

Are there additional federal, State or local permits or approvals required? HYes [1No
If yes, please list;

State the hours and days of operation: (Note: Maximum open hours are between 9 AM to 9 PM)

Sun Y- fpn_Mon & ~lop Tues 8=l Wed _S b Thu &G pe Fii St st

* List below the names and addresses of the owners of abutting property and those with property on the opposite side
of the street or public way. (Attach a separate sheet if necessary)
Name Address Map/Lot

TAKE RO P~ 8 (EweSon Yy

Asspel Ry ay b AR NI 1/

FOR MARIJUANA STORES ONLY:

Describe how you will ensure that the Marijuana Store will not sell, give, distribute, or deliver marijuana or marijuana
products to persons who are under the age of twenty-one (21), or to persons who appear to be under the influence

of an alcohol, inhalants, or other controlled substance: (] Please check if additional sheets are attached)

Describe how marijuana and marijuana products at the Marijuana Store will be displayed and sold: {1 Please check
if additional sheets are attached)

[ Attach samples of the logo and labeling that will be used in the store, and the sign to be attached to the store‘i\P\

o Attach the Security Plan for this location. (Include location of Knox Box)

Page 4 of 7




“{ Attach the Odor Control Plan for this location.

The Planning Office shall notify the following Department Heads for input including but not limited to adequate traffic
safety and emergency vehicie access (please include internal comment sheet):

Fire Rescue Chief
_Police Chief
0 Director of Public Works

[! The Planning Office shall notify the Town Manager for their review and any recommendations.

O The Planning Officer, in conjunction with the Code Enforcement Office, shall submit a letter regarding whether
the applicant is in violation of any Town land use ordinance on the subject parcel. They shall also notify all abutting
property owners through certified mail (please include list of names and certified mailing tracking numbers)
Evidence of all land use approvals conditional land use approvals or other local approvals required to operate a
marijuana establishment pursuant to Eliot’s code of Ordinance, including, but not limited to the following, please
check all which are attached:

0O Approved Building Permit

0 Special exception approval

O Planning Board Notice of Decision

0 Certificate of Occupancy

1 Food License

WﬁOther /PZ’?V";T‘CJQI"{?» TEL ;r/,»y(p, ‘F/,LC ‘ 47&‘/

Notas reserved for office staff only:

Chece abuters ?

Upon Planning Board approval, the application shall be forwarded to the Select Board for a Public Hearing
for consideration of approval of a permit/license. All advertising fees for the public hearing will be invoiced
to the applicant.

Annual Permit/License Fees (Payable annually upon Board of Selectmen permit/license issuance):

Page5of 7




I Marijuana Store; $7,500
(7 Marijuana Cultivation:

] Tier | Cultivation: Up to 30 mature plants  $1,500

LI Tier Il Cultivation: 501-2,000 SF of mature plant canopy:  $3,500
L1 Tier [Il Cultivation: 2,001-7,000 SF of mature plant canopy:. $7,500
L1 Tier IV Cultivation: 7,001-20,000 SF of mature plant canopy: $15,000

O Nursery Cultivation: Cultivation of not more than 1,000 SF of plant canopy per 28-B M.R.S, §501.3
$2,000

[ Marijuana Manufacturing Fagcility: $5,000

E{Marijuana Testing Facility: $500

Note: The cost of advertising public hearing notices and the cost of postage for notifying abutters is included in the
application fee.

Only sign next to the following statement if you are applying for a Marijuana Store, a Marijuana Cultivation
Facility, or a Marijuana Products Manufacturing Facility license:

t certify that | do not have an ownership in, or a direct or indirect financial interest in a Marijuana Testing
Facility license.

Applicant Signature Applicant Printed Name Date

Only sign the following statement if you are applying for a Marijuana Testing Facility license:

| certify that I do not have an ownership in, or a direct or indirect financial interest in a Marijuana Store, a
Marijuana Cultivation Facility, or a Marijuana Manufacturing Facility.

g/ Q.giéf Gey S, ez 6 /23/ 2/

Applicﬁlt Sig‘ﬁ;ture Applicant Printed Name Date

By operating an adult use marijuana business pursuant to a conditional use permit issued by the Eliot Planning Board, and an
annual Town of Efiot Adult Use Marijuana municipal license issued by the Municipal Officers, a permit holder releases the Town
of Eliot, its officers, elected and appointed officials, employees, attorneys and agents from any liability for injuries, damages, or
liakifities of any kind that result from any arrest or prosecution of the licensee or permit holder, its owners, operators,

Page 6 of 7



employees, clients or customers for a violation of any state or federal law, rule or regulations related to matijuana, or from
forced closure of the licensed premises because the Maine Adult Use Marijuana Legalization Act M.R.S,A. Title 28-B is found to
be invalid under any applicable law, including but not limited to Federal law. As part of the conditional use permit application
and the Town of Eliot Aduft Use Marijuana municipal license application for an adult use marijuana facility in the Town of Eliot,
an applicant shall sign and submit a waiver that states the following:

1.~ By applying for and accepting a Conditionat Use Permit issued by the Eliot Planning Board, and an annual Town of Eliot
Adult Use Marijuana municipal license issued by the Municipal Officers, the permit holder waives and releases the Town
of Eliot, its officers, elected and appointed officials, employees, attorneys and agents from any liability for injuries,
damages or liabilities of any kind that result from any arrest or prosecution of business owners, aperators, employees,
clients or customers for a violation of state or federal laws, rules or regulations.

2, By applying for and accepting a Conditional Use Permit, and an annual Town of Eliot Adult Use Marijuana municipal
license all permit holders, jointly and severally if more than one agree to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Town
of Eliot, its officers, elected and appointed officials, employees, attorneys and agents against all liability, claims and
demands on account of any injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind
whatsoever arising out of or in any manner connected with the operation of the adult use marijuana business that is
subject of the conditional use permit and an annual Town of Eliot adult use marijuana municipal license.

). S oy /s

S—'lfgnéture of /fpplicant Applicant Printe(d Name

Must be approved/signed by the majority of the Select Board for approval

Richard Donhauser, Select Board Member

Alexandros Orestis, Select Board Member

Robert McPherson, Select Board Member

William Widi, Select Board Member

Lauren Dow, Select Board Member

Staff Use Only:
Select Board Approval Date: Public Hearing Date:

Fee Paid $ Date Fee Paid:

NOTES:

Page 7 of 7



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE
OFFICE OF THE SELECT BOARD
1333 State Rogd, Eliot, ME 03903

P ,fmél-l% La!%A@lN@ N‘DT@%

#
RN

b e i TSNl
AUTHORITY: / MEL:OTSELECT’WARD
PLACE: , / Euomquhrm&éim? i
DATE OF HEARING: ,«THURg,lei'ECTé;EEE;; 2(@
TIME: R 's“;a w?eéooanﬁ - \ \, -

o \ \\ " % _Ef d(\ }J
Notice is hereby given that\ the Selecf Bo ofﬁtﬁeil',,ov?mwcaf Ehcﬁ/ Mame will 9 ld public hearing on Thursday,
October 14, 2021 at 6: OPM in said Toyvﬁ tg "héa "bu e eomment on“the’ Special Referendum Warrant
Articles to be voted by secfei Eallot on T“’uesday,@Novembe\i‘Q 2021 gs fo fjows:

oy x}
v Article 2: Towr. de mgndment th{pter 85 P,ost~CownstF’/ctlon Stormwater Management,
Related to Post- Constructron"*@t@m;g\g@w @Management Appllcabm and Fees
R
¢ Article 3: Town Code Amendment - Ch@pter 45, Zoning Related to Demolition of Historic
Structures

o Article 4: Town Code Amendment — Chapter 44, Shoreland Zoning, Related to Shoreline
Vegetation and Development Site Photographs

+ Article 5: Town Code Amendment — Chapter 45, Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

Article 6: Town Code Amendment — Chapter 7, Animal Control, Related to Rooster Noise

All interested persons are invited to attend the public hearing and will be given an opportunity to be heard
at that time.

Copies of the Special Referendum Warrant, proposed Town Code Amendments and other

Informational material are available at the Town Office and on the Municipal Website
(www.eliotmaine.org).




Municipal Officers’ Return
Eliot, Maine

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. §2528(5), on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 being at least seven (7) days before
the hearing Wendy Rawski, Town Clerk nofified the inhabitants of Eliot of a public hearing, to be held at the
Eliot Town Office on Thursday, October 14, 2021 for the purposes stated on the notice, by posting a copy of

the notice at the followmg publlc an ﬂp@nSpmuousﬂplaces in E!tot Town Office, Transfer Station, Post Office

and Willlam Fogg L|brary e’
\}\7@ J‘v %ﬁ'; \*‘w
. f o,
N
- Given under our hands’ th.-s 14th day otgr :
! / i o
Alexandros Orestis, dhajrman 7 05
MJ’”..W A %(W} ,v“ : \‘\ iy

Richard Donhauser, \{lce_ Chai

Robert McPherson, Seé‘ngf‘a[y

T . EN) e b v o
William Widi A O d gy

Lauren Dow

Municipal Officers

" - Eliot, Maine




Staff Report
Special Town Referendum Public Hearing — October 14, 2021
Select Board Meeting: October 14, 2021

Background: Required Public Hearing on referendum material to be voted on by secret ballot as required by
30-A MRS §2528(5).

Issue: Title 30-A MRS §2528(5) requires that the Municipal Officers hold a public hearing on the subject of
articles to be voted upon by secret ballot referendum. The hearing must be held at least 10 days before the
election,

At least seven days before the hearing, the municipal officers must give notice of the hearing by posting a
notice that includes the date, time, and place of the hearing along with a description of the proposed articles.

The Municipal Officers shall make a return on the original notice stating where and when the notice was
posted, and whom posted it.

Discussion: The proposed ordinance amendments presented under articles two through six were certified by
the Board at the Aug. 26, 2021 meeting. Jeff Brubaker, Town Planner is planning to attend the Public Hearing
to answer any questions the public may have.

Fiscal Impact: None

Recommendation; Make note that the Notice of the Public Hearing was posted by Wendy Rawski, Town Clerk
on Tuesday, September 28, 2021 at the required locations in town and it was in the Portsmouth Herald on
Tuesday, October 5, 2021, both being seven days before the hearing. Select Board should sigh return

The Public Hearing is to begin at 6:00pm, allow public comment/questions.
Prepared by: Wendy Rawski, Town Clerk

Town Manager Recommendation: The public hearing must be held and no action or motion is required as all
requirements have been met.

[s/Canat M. Granficld

Carol M. Granfield, ICMA-CM
Interim Town Manager



LAQLUDIYH SHVEBIURE (L, ZD0 W] 1970 1T T 00 DW= U | LA LT Z0LUY

TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE
SPECIAL TOWN REFERENDUM WARRANT
TUESDAY, NOVEMBER 2, 2021
To: 8ara Quimet, Resident of the Town of Eliot, County of York, State of Maine

In the name of the State of Maine, you are hereby required to notify and warn the inhabitants of the Town
of Eliot, County of York, State of Maine, qualified by law to vote in town affairs, to meet at Marshwood
Middle School, 626 H. L. Dow Highway, Eliot, Maine, on Tuesday, November 2, 2021 at 7:30AM for
opening ceremonies and action on Article One, Election of Moderator. The polls for voting will be open
from 8:00 AM to 8:00 PM for secret ballot voting on Articles Two through Six.

Pursuant to Title 21-A, Section 759(7) absentee ballots will be processed at the polling place from 9:00
AM — 8:00 PM on the hour, every hour as needed.

The Town will provide any reasonable accommodations for any disabled resident to attend this Election.
Please notify the Town Clerk at the Town Office of the need. This is in accordance with the ADA Law.

NOTE: Please use the Depot Road entrance to access the designated voter parking area.

ARTICLE #1: To elect a moderator by written ballot to preside at said meeting.

ARTICLE #2; Shall an Ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General
Provisions and Chapter 35 — Post-Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction
Stormwater Management Applicability and Fees” be enacted?

Planning Board Recommends Approval (Vote; 3 ~ 0 — 2 absent)
Select Board Recommends Approval (Vote: 4 — 0 — 1 absent)

The complete text is available at the Town Office and on the Town Website (www.eliotmaine.org) for review.

ARTICLE #3: Shall an Ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General
Provisions and Chapter 45 — Zoning, Related to Demolition of Historic Structures” be enacted?

Planning Board Recommends Approval (Vote: 4 — 0 — 1 absent)
Select Board Recommends Approval (Vote: 4 — 0 — 1 absent)

The complete text is available at the Town Office and on the Town Website (www.eliotmaine.org) for review.

ARTICLE #4: Shall an Ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 44 —
Shoreland Zoning, Related to Shoreline Vegetation and Development Site Photographs” be enacted?

Planning Board Recommends Approval (Vote; 3 — 0 — 2 absent)
Select Board Recommends Approval (Vote: 4 ~ 0 ~ 1 absent)

The complete text is available at the Town Office and on the Town Website (www.eliotmaine.org) for review.

09/01/21 - wir



HULGLDIYN CHVEIUPE I, £2D0 1V 1 I-AY 14 U D -00DW-U) | D BOLWJIY

ARTICLE #5: Shall an Ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 —
Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales” be enacted?

Planning Board Recommends Approval (Vote: 3—0 — 2 absent)
Select Board Recommends Approval (Vote: 4 — 0 — 1 absent)

The complete text is available at the Town Office and on the Town Website (www.eliotmaine.org) for review.

ARTICLE #6: Shall an Ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 7 — Animal
Control, Related fo Rooster Noise” be enacted?

Two Select Board Members Recommend Approval, Two Select Board Members Oppose Approval
(Vote: 2 — 2 — 1 absent) *Please Note: All Select Board Members present voted in the affirmative to place the
amendment on the warrant.

The complete text is available at the Town Office and on the Town Website (www.eliotmaine.org) for review.

Given under our hands this 9th day of September, 2021

Alexandros Orestis, Chairman

Coeublgned by;
Richard D set=Miee Chairman

DocuSigned by

Keburt MepPlison
Robert McRhersomSesretary

A DocuSigned by: )
William Widi: Seleetman .

f«MDocuSIQned by:
&M bm
Lauren Dow.&elagtman.

Select Beard
Town of Eliot, Maine

RETURN OF THE WARRANT
Eliot, Maine

, 2021

Pursuant to the within warrant to me directed, | have notified and warned the inhabitants of said town,
qualified as herein expressed, to meet at said time and place, and for the purposes therein named, by
posting an attested copy of said warrant at the Eliot Town Office interior & Exterior Bulletin Boards, the
Eliot Transfer Station Bulletin Board, the Eliot Post Office Bulletin Board and the William Fogg Library
Bulletin Board in said town, being public and conspicuous places in said town, on the day of
. 2021 bheing at least seven days before the meeting.

Sara Cuimet, Resident, Town of Eliot, Maine

09/01/21 - wir



Doguslgn Envelops ID: CB40749C-0166-4048-A316-026801 150DHE

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter | — General Provisions and Chapter 35 - Pogt-
Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater Management
Applicability and Fees

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 ~ General Provisions and Chapter 35 —
Post-Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater
Management Applicability and Fees

August 3, 2021 — Initial Planning Board review

August 11, 2021 — Legal review

August 17, 2021 — Planning Board public hearing; Planning Board recommends (3-0)
August 26, 2021 ~ Select Board recommends (4-0)

ARTICLE #2: Shall an Ordinance entifled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 —
General Provisions and Chapter 35 — Post-Construction Stormwater Management, Related to
Post-Construction Stormwater Management Applicability and Fees” be enacted?

Background and rationale — short

Extends post-construction stormwater management requirements in Chapter 35 of the Town
Code from the Urbanized Area only to town-wide. Maintains the same threshold where Chapter
35 is only applicable to developments disturbing one acre or more. Changes the current
stormwater management facility annual inspection fee toward recovering Town staff costs
related to post-construction stormwater management agreements, Clarifies that the annual
stormwater certification sent by the property owner (or other entity responsible for maintaining
stormwater facilities) must attach the associated ingpection report done by a qualified post-
construction stormwater inspector.

Background and rationale — long

This amendment extends post-construetion stormwater management requirenents in Chapter 35
of the Town Code from the Urbanized Area only to town-wide. For developments subject to
Chapter 35 that install stormwater management facilities, property owners (or other responsible
entities, such as homeowners’ associations) are responsible for maintaining the facilities so they
continue to function properly. Chapter 35 applies to development or redevelopment that disturbs
one acre or more of land, or development that disturbs less than one acre if the development is
patt of a larger common plan of development or sale — but only for development in the
Urbanized Area, which is a U.8, Census-based designation that only covers a part of the town,
These amendments would change Section 35-3 so that all parts of town would be covered. The
general “one acre ot more of disturbed area” threshold would stay the same. While the Town of
Eliot and nearby communities are subject to state stormwater rules that only apply to Urbanized
Areas, many of these nearby communities have a town-wide scope for their post-construction
stormwater management requiremenis. :



Doousign Envelope iD: CB497400-4186-4948-A316-C26B9115C0RR

Proposed Town Code Amendmenis of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 35 — Post-
Constroction Stormwatet Management, Related to Pest-Construction Stormwater Management

Applicability and Fees

This amendment also changes the current stormwater management facility annual inspection fee
toward recovering Town staff costs related to post-construction stormwater management
agreements, Estimated staff time per site per year to send annual certification rominder letters
and log, review, and follow up on annual inspections done by property owners is five (5) hours,
This would be covered by a “base fee”. The amendment also establishes fees for Town staf{ or
third-party stormwater consultant inspections, as needed. These inspections may be needed if the
stormwater facilities are reported to be not working properly, if the annual certification and
inspection report has deficiencies, or for other reasons. The current fee is $100. The amendment
ostablishes a base fee of $250, with additional per-inspection cost recovery fees if Town staff or
third-party consultant inspection is needed: $300 for a Town staff inspection; $900 for a third-
party consultant inspection, Finally, this amendment modifios Appendices 1 and 2 of Ch. 35 to
add requirements that the annual certification be accompanied by the inspection report.



Docuslgn Envelope 1D CR40749C-0165-404B-A315-C26 301 15CDBE

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 35 - Post-
Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater Management

Applicability and Fees

(New text underlined in bold)
Deleted-toxt-in-striliethrongh

Sec. 1-25, - Fee schedule.

PUBLIC WORKS/ROAD COMMISSIONER

PURPOSE

FEE

Stormwater management facilities — review of annual certifications
and fnspection reports for properties entered into a maintenance

$250,00 — annual

Stormwater management facilities - annual-Town inspection (ag needed)
of propetties entered into a maintenance agreement with the Town

(Sec, 35-4(b)(6); See. 35-5(b))

agreement with the Town (Sec. 35-4(b)(6)) base fee
$106:00—annual
inspeetionfoe

$300.00 per Town
staff inspection

$900,00 per
Town-contracted
third-party
consuliant
inspection

Excavation permit « for excavation of town ways (Sec, 37-55)

$100.00

Driveway construction permit

$50.00




DocuSign Envelope 10 CB49749C-0166-404B-A315-C26B5115CDEB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 35 - Post-
Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater Management
Applicability and Fees

Sec, 35-3. - Applicability,

(8) In general. This chapter applies to:

(1) Development or redevelopment that disturbs one acte or more of land within the
Usbanized-Area municipality; and

(2) Development that disturbs less than one acre if the development is part of a larger
cotmon plan of development or sale within the Usbanized-Area municipality.



Docusign Envelopa ID: CB40749C-0166-4948-A315-C2600116COBR

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 - General Provisions and Chapter 35 ~ Post~
Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater Management
Applicability and Fees

APPENDIX 1

Maintenance Agreement for
Stormwater Management Facilities

This Maintenance Agreement is made this ___ day of 20___ by and between
and the Town of Eliot, Maine.

The project name is
The location is: , Eliot, Maine.

The project's Tax Map and Lot Numbers are Tax Map Lot

The project is shown on a plen entitled * " dated and most recently
revised on yapproved by the [Municipal Permitting Board] on and
recordedinthe ___ County Registry of Deeds in Plan Book Pago (the

"Project").
WHEREAS, the approval of the Project includes Stormwater Management Facilities which
requires periodic maintenance; and

WHEREAS, in consideration of the approval of the Project the Town of Eliot requires that
periodic maintenance be performed on. the Stormwater Management Facilities,

NOW, THBREFORE', in consideration of the mutual benefits accruing from the approval of the
Project by the Town and the agreement of to maintain the Stormwater
Management Facilities, the parties hereby agree as follows:

Lo _» for itself, and its successors and assigns, agrees to the following;

(8) To use a Qualified Post-Construction Storm Water Inspector to inspect the
Stormwater Management Facilities; and to clean, maintain, and repair the
Stormwater Management Facilities, which mcludes, to the extent they exist,
parking areas, catch basins, detention basins or ponds, drainage swales, pipes and
related stractures, at least annually, to prevent the build up and storage of sediment
and debris in the system as described in the Post-Construction Maintenance Plan
for the facilities;

(b) To provide a certification of inspection to the Town by July 1 each year, The
nalified Post-Construction Storm Water Inspector’s inspection report must

be provided along with the certification,

(¢} To repair any deficiencies in the Stormwater Management Facilities noted during
the annual inspection and provide notice to the Town. of the repairs within 60 days
of identification or within a schedule approved by the Code Enforcement Officer;
and

(d)  For subdivisions, to create a homeownets' association for the purpose of
maintaining the Stormwater Management Facilities,



DacuSign Envelope ID: CR4§749C-9166-484B-A316-C20B81 15CDBB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 - General Provisions and Chapter 35 — Post-
Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater Management

Applicability and Fees
2. For subdivisions, upon creation of the homeowners' association, the homeowners’
association shall become responsible for compliance with the terms of this Agreement.

3, This Agreement shall constitute a covenant ranning with the land, and __
shall reference this Agreement in all deeds to lots and/or units within the Project,

By:
Its:
Witness
TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE
By
Witness Its:
STATE OF MAINE 5 88, , 20
Tersonally appeared the above-named , the of
, and acknowledged the

foregoing Agreement to be said person's free act and deed in said capacity,

Before me,

Notary Public/Attorney at Law

Print Name:

STATE OF MAINE ) 58, .20




Docuslgn Envelope |D: B49749C-8166-4948-A315-C260¢116CDBR

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 ~ General Provisions and Chapter 35 — Post-
Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater Management

Applicability and Fees
Personally appeared the above-named , the _of the
Town of , and

acknowledged the foregoing Agreement to be said his/her free act and deed in said capacity.

! Before me,

! Print Name:

Notary Public/Attorney at Law




DocuSign Envelope 1D, CB48745C-9166-464B-A315-026B0115CDBB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chepter 35 — Post-
Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater Management

Applicability and Fees
APPENDIX 2
Inspection Certification for
Stormwater Management Facilities
I, . (print or type name), certify the following:
1, I am making this Annual Stormawater Management Facilities Certification for the
following property:

(print or type name of subdmsmn, condominium or other development) located at
(print or type address), (the “Property™);

2. The owner, operator, tonant, lessee ot homeowners’ association of the Property is:
{names of owner, operator, tenant, lessee,
homeowners® association or other party having control over the Property),

3, I am (circle one):

a. & Qualified Post-Construction Stormwater Inspector hired by the person or
party specified in #2, and have reviewed the approved Stormwater
Managemont Plan for the facility and have inspected the Stormwater
Management Facilitics;

or,

b, the person (or a duly authorized represontative of the party) specified in #2,
and I have hired a Qualified Post-Construction Stormwater Inspector and
received and reviewed a copy of their ingpection repoxt;

4. On , 20__, the Stormwater Management Facilitles were inspected,
1nclud1ng but not limited to parking aroas, catch basins, drainage swales, detention basins and
ponds, pipes and related structures required by the approved Stormwater Management Plan for
the Property;

5. At the time of the inspection (check one and complete any required information):

a. ___ The Stormwater Management Facilities were adequately maintained and
functioning as intended, or

b, The Stormwater Management Facilities required maintenance, which
was completed within the required 60-day time period, and were functioning
as intended after maintenance was completed, or

c The Stormwater Management Facilitios required maintenance which was
not completed within the required 60-day time period. (Attach additional

8



Docusign Envelope ID: CBAST40C-0166-4948-A316-C26B5115CDB8

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 35 ~ Post-
Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater Management
" Applicability and Fees

sheets as necessaty to describe the maintenance required, proposed schedule
for completion, and an appropriate contact person, The Code Enforcement
Officer will contaot them to confirm or adjust the schedule to complete the
maintenance and any needed further course of action.)

Date: » 20
By: (Signature)
- { Print Name_
Personally appeared the above-named , the of

, and acknowledged the
foregoing Agreement to be said person's free act and deed in said capacity.

Before me,

Notary Public/Attorney at Law

Print Name:

STATE OF MAINE , §8. , 20

The Town of Eliot i’equires this form, along with the associated inspection report, to be sent to
the Code Enforcement Officer by July 1 each year,



DocuSign Envelope 1D CB49740C-0166-484B-A316-C2688115CDBH

‘Proposed Town Code Afnendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 35 — Post-
Construction Stormwater Management, Related to Post-Construction Stormwater Management

Applicability and Fees

Municipal Officers® Certification of Official Text of a Propoesed Ordinance
To the Town Clerk of the Town of Eliot, Maine:

We hereby certify to you that the document fo which we have affixed this certificate is a true
copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter
1 - Gieneral Provisions and Chapter 35 — Post-Construction Stormwater Management, Related to
Post-Construction Stormwater Management Applicability and Fees”, which is to bo presented to

the voters for their consideration on November 2, 2021,

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete text of the '
ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for distribution to the votets, and

you will ensure that copies are available at the town meeting/polling places on the day of the

vole.

Dated: ( Zgﬁugﬁ 20 ﬁ,’ 2021

Alexandros Orestis, Chairman

DovyiBigned ky:
Gt’cWA Dowluausey
Richard DotbalsEF4E4% Chairman
Doousigned by:

Kot MePlutirson,
Robert McPireFssiceseesstary

CrosuSlgned byt

(‘JJ/UAEM’\ ” Lu)u .
William W‘iareazsowmoma.,.

DocuBlgned by:

o Dow

La-nran DO wee 040011 8AB 172408, .,

[

Select Board
Town of Eliot, Maine

10



DocuSign Envelope | CHAB74DC-0166-4948-A315-C2680116CDBER

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chaptor | — General Provisions and Chapter 45 ~ Zoning,
Related to Demolition of Historjc Structures

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 - General Provisions and Chapter 45 —
Zoning, Related to Demolition of Historic Structures '

August 12, 2021 — Legal raview

August 12-16, 2021 - Review comments from Eliot Historical Society and Maine Historic
FPreservation Commission

August 17, 2021 — Initial Planning Board review

August 24, 2021 — Planning Board public hearing; Planning Board recommends (4-0), with
revisions

August 26, 2021 - Select Board recommends (4-0)

ARTICLE #3: Shall an Ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 -
General Provisions and Chapter 45 — Zoning, Related to Demolition of Historic Structures” be
enacted?

Background and rationale — short

Establishes a 90-dey delay period applicable to a demolition permit application for a building or
portion of a building that is 100 years in age or older, or that is on the National Register of
Historic Places, so that alternatives to demolition can be explored. Exempts demolition of
dangerous buildings from this requirement. Allows time for consultation to ocour between the
applicant for the demolition and-or property owner, Town staff, the Planning Board, the public,
and local and state historic preservation stakeholders to explore potential alternatives, but does
not prohibit or indefinitely delay any demolition. Provides for a Planning Board public hearing
o applicable demolition permits. Authorizes the Code Enforcement Officer to waive or lessen
the delay period based on advisory opinions that a sttucture is not historically or architecturally
significant, If demolition is to be the final result, requires a property recordation and ENCoUrages
the salvaging of building materials,

Background and rationale — long

This ordinance amendment establishes a 90-day delay period applicable to a demolition permit
application for a building ot portion of a building that is 100 years in age or older, or that is on
the National Register of Historic Places, so that alternatives to demolition of historically ot
architecturally significant buildings (or potentially historlcally or architecturally significant
buildings) can be explored. The delay period would start upon receipt of a complete demolition

1



DeocuSign Envelope (1; CBAD749C-9166-404B-A316-C20128116C0BE

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 45 — Zoning,
Related to Demolition of Historic Structutes ‘

permit application, ¥t would not apply to buildings deemed dangerous that may need to be
demolished quickly, To that end, the amendment adds a definition of “dangerous building” in
Section 1-2, modeled on a state law definition, and Includes an exemption from the delay period
for dangerous building demolition.

The delay period allows time for consultation to occur between the applicant for the demolition
and-or property owner, Town staff, the Planning Boaxd, the public, and local and state historic
preservation stakeholders to explore potential demolition alternatives, It does not, and is not
intended to, prohibit or indefinitely delay anyone from demolishing or altering historically or
architecturally significant or sensitive structures, It provides for a Planning Board public hearing
so that abutting property owners and other members of the public have an opportunity to provide
input on the proposed demolition, The Planning Board could issue an advisory opinion to inform
the Code Enforcement Officer’s review of the application, The delay period may be waived or
lessened based on advisory opinions from the Planning Board, plus either the local historical
society or State Historic Preservation Commission, that the building or portion thereof that is
contemplated for demolition is not architecturally or historically significant. During the delay
period, the applicant and-or propetty owner are encouraged to seek alternative options that will

© preserve, rehabilitate, restore, or move the building., If demolition is to be the final result,
‘histotically/architecturally significant buildings would need to have a recordation of the property
done either by the applicant or owner ot a Jocal historical society, and the applicant/owner would
bo encouraged to salvage building materials.



Doguslgn Envelope 1D: CB49749C-0166-494B-A318-026B39115C0RB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 45 — Zoning,
Related to Demolition of Historie Structures

New text in bold underline
Deleted-texi-instrikethrough

Sec, 1-2, - Definitions and rules of construction,

{Note: section abridged to only show definitions proposed to be added by this ordinance
amendment]

Add a new definition to the section in alphabetical order:

Dangerous building means a building that is structurally unsafe, unstable or
unsanitarys constitutes a fire hazard; is unsuitable or improper for the use or
occupancy to which it is put; constitutes a hazard to health or safety because of

inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, obselescence or abandonment: or s
otherwise dangerous to life or property.

State Law reference—Definition based on 17 M.R.S.A, § 2851(2-A) at the time of
adoption




DocuSign Envelope [D: CB497490.91686-494B-4315-C26R9115CDBE

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1~ General Provisions and Chapter 45 — Zoning,
Related to Demolition of Historic Structures

Add a new section:

Section 45-136, — Demolition Delay for Historic Siructures

(a)

Purposes: The purposes of this section are to help preserve architecturally and
historically significant resources in the community, inercase town involvement in
the preservation of the town’s unique cultural and historical assets (2009
Comprehensive Plan Historic and Archacological Policy 1), and help provide
town decision-makers with the necessary support to protect the town’s most
valued historical assets (2009 Comprehensive Plan Historic and Archaeological
Policy 2), This section does not, and is not intended to, prohibit or indefinitely
delay anyone from demolishing or altering historically significant or sensitive
structures. Tt is intended to delay the issuance of a demolition permit for certain
stractures, or parts of sttuctures, for a short period of time to allow for the
exploration of alternatives to demolition.

(b) Except as described in paragraphs (c) and (f), no permit for the demolition, in

©

whole or in part, of a building (or its additions, ells, or wings) that is one bundred
(100) years in age ot older, or that is on the National Register of Historic Places,
shall be issued until at least ninety {(90) days after a complete application for
demolition has been received by the Code Enforcement Officer.

The delay petiod referenced in paragraph (b) shall not apply to the demolition of a
dangerous building as defined in Section 1-2, Nothing in this section shall be
interpreted as delaying the review of a demolition permit for such a building, The
applicant for a demolition permit for a building subject to this section shall
inchude with their application a statement, with supporting information, that the
building is a dangerous building, The staternent must be signed or endorsed by a
licensed building inspector or other professional qualified to assess buildings
based on the dangetous building definition, The delay period also shall not apply,
and the dangerous building statement shall not be required, for buildings ordered
to be demolished or deemed dangerous buildings or life safety hazards by the
Maine Superior Court, Select Board, Code Enforcement Officer; or Fire Chief,

(d) After recoiving a complete application for demolition that is subject to paragraph

(b), the Code Enforcement Officer, or designee, shall date the application and
determine if it applies to paragraph (c) rolating to demolition of a dangerous
building, If the Code Enforcement Officer deems that it does not apply to
paragraph (c):
4. The Code Bnforcement Officer, or designee, shall;
i, Notify the applicant of the delay perlod and its start and end dates
and



DocuSign Envelops I CB49749C-9166-494B-A315-C26B011500R8

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 45 ~ Zoning,
Related to Demolition of Historic Structures

it. Forward a copy of the application to a local histotleal society, the
Maine Historic Preservation Commission, the Planning Board, and
the Town Planner.

b, Within sixty (60) days of receipt of the complete application, the Planning
Board shall bold & public hearing on the permit application for the purpose
of discussing the historical and architectural significance of the building
and inviting comment from abutting property owners, the public, and the
applicant or property owner, Notice for a public hearing shall be given in
compliance with Section 33-130, Prior to the public hearing, the applicant
shall pay the Planning Board public hearing fee specified in Section 1-25.

¢ After the public hearing, the Planning Board, at its discretion, may issue
an advisory opinion on the building’s historical significance and possible
alternatives to demolition, .

{e) During the 90-day delay period, the applicant and-or property owner is
encouraged to work with any interestet parties to explore possible alternatives to
demolition, including, but not necessarily limited to, preserving, rehabilitating,
restoring, or moving the building,

(f) The Code Enforcement Officer may lessen or waive the 90-day delay period after
receipt and consideration of an advisory opinion from the Planning Board after
the public hearing described in paragraph (d), and written opinions from either the
Maine State Historio Preservation Commission or a local historical society, that
the building or portion thereof that is contemplated for demolition is not
architecturally or historically significant. Such opinions are at the discretion of the
aforementioned entities; nothing in this section is intended to establish or imply
an obligation for them to provide an opinion. In order to provide an opinion, these
entities may require more information than what is included in a typical
demolition permit application, While the Town initially forwards applications to
these entities, it is the responsibility of the applicant to provide any additional
information they may need in order for them to render a decigion.

(g) If a building or portion thereof is deemed to be architecturally or historically
significant, and demolition will be the final result:

a. Prior to issuance of the demolition permit, the applicant or owner shall
prepare and submit a historical building recordation of the property
congsistent with the Maine Historic Preservation Commission’s Guidelines
Jfor Architectural and Engineering Documentation (Non-MHBS/MEER
Reports), The purpose of this recordation is to preserve an accurate record
of historic properties that can be used in research and other historic
preservation activities, The Code Enforcement Officer may waive this
requirement if a local historical society, working with the applicant or
owner, prepares and submits a similar recordation of the property.

5



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB49749C-8166-484B-7A315-C26841165C0B8

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — General Provisions and Chapter 45 — Zoning,
Related to Demolition of Historic Structures

b. ‘The applicant or property owner is encouraged to work with interested
parties to salvage, recycle, and reuse as many of the building materials as
possible,

(h) Once the review process has been completed and, if required, the historical
building recordation has been submitted, the Code Enforcement Officer may issue
the demolition permit.



DocuSign Envelops ID; CB497490-0186-494B-A315-C268B51 1 5CDBR

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 1 — (General Provisions and Chapter 45 — Zoning,
Related to Demolition of Historic Structures

Municipal Officers’ Certification of Official Text of a Proposed Ordinance
Ta the Town Clerk of the Town of Eliot, Maine:

Wo hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this certificate is a true
copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter
I — General Provisions and Chapter 45 — Zoning, Related to Demolition of Historic Structures®,
which 1s to be presented to the voters for their constderation on November 2, 2021,

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A, § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete text of the
ordinance as a public tecord and make other coples available for distribution to the voters, and you
will ensure that copies are available at the town meeting/polling places on the day of the vote,

Dated: C(,a?ﬁlﬁﬁa_l{& ___«,&Q;?;J
N

Alexandros Ovestis, Chairman

DocuBfgnad by; )
Nihard Dabawstr
Richard DonfiiasE#e¥i%e Chairman

Hoousigned by!

Relrk WPl
Robert MCPHESBIT ¥ etary

wfloausignod by;
rLLJLI_,“‘m Ll }- L/) l‘_lJ
William. Wfdfazﬂucwmomn.,

[ocuBlgnat byr
ﬁmm m

v

Lauren D(Sw-mnua;\mman...

Select Board
Town of Eliot, Maine



DocuSign Bnvalope 1D: GR4O7490-9168-404B-A315-C26B9116C0DEEB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 44 ~ Shoreland Zoning, Related to Shoreline
Vegetation and Devolopment Site Photographs

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 44 — Shoreland Zoning, Related to
Shoreline Vegetation and Development Site Photographs

July 29 and August 10, 2021 — DEF preliminary reviews/preliminary approval

August 3, 2021 - Initial Planning Board review

August 9, 2021 — Legal review

August 17, 2021 — Planning Board publlc hearing; Planning B oard recommends (3-0)
August 26, 2021 — Select Board recommends (4-0)

ARTICLE #4: Shall an Ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 44 -
Shoreland Zoning, Related to Shoreline Vegetation and Development Site Photographs” be
enacted? '

Background and rationale

In. accordance with state law — 38 MRSA §439-A(10)~ adds a requiremaent to Chapter 44 —
Shoreland Zoning requiring that an applicant for a shoreland zoning permit provide
preconstruction photos and, no later than 20 days after completion of the development,
posteonstruction photos of the shoreling vegetation and the development site. Provides that the
posteonstruction photo requirement would be a standard condition of approval of any shoreland
zoning permit,



DocuSign Envelops ID; CB49749C-0166-494B-A316-C26B9115C0EB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 44 — Shoreland Zoning, Related to Shoreline
Vegetation and Development Site Photographs

(New text underlined in bold)
Dolsted-toxtin-strilcothrough

Sec. 44-43, - Permit application,

(a) Bvery applicant for a permit shall subimit a written application, including a scaled site
plan, on a form provided by the municipality, to the appropriate official as indicated
section 44-34, A fee in the amount ¢stablished by the fee schedule in section 1-25 shall
be submiited with the application.

(b) All applications shall be signed by an owner or individual who can show evidence of
right, title or interest in the propetty or by an agent, representative, tenant, ot contractor
of the owner with authorization from the owner to apply for a permit hereunder,
certifying that the information in the application is complete and correct,

(c) All applications shall be dated, and the code enforcement officer or planning board, as
appropriate, shall note upon each. application the date and time of its receipt.

(d) If the property is not served by a public sewer, a valid plumbing permit or a completed
application for a plumbing permit, including the site svaluation approved by the
plumbing inspector, shall be submiited whenever the nature of the proposed structute
would require the installation of a subsurface sewage disposal system.

{e) When an excavation confractor will perform an activity that requires or results in more
than one cubic yard of soil disturbance, the person responsible for management of erosion
and sedimentation control practices at the site must be certified in erosion control
practices by the Maine Department of Environmental Protection. This petson must be
present at the site each day earthmoving activity occurs for a duration that is sufficient to
ensure that proper erosion and sedimentation control practices are followed, This is
required until erosion and sedimentation control measures have been installed, which will
either stay in place permanently or stay in place until the area is sufficiently covered with
vegetation necessary to prevent soil erosion, The name and certification number of the
person who will oversee the activity causing or resulting in soil disturbance shall be
included on the permit application, This requirement does not apply to a person or firm
engaged in agriculture or timber harvesting if best management practices for erosion and
sedimentation control are used; and municipal, state and federal employees engaged in
projects asgociated with that employment,

(0 Al applications shall include preconstruction photographs clearly showing
shoreline vegetation on the property and the site(s) of any proposed development, If

the Planning Board or Code Enforcement Officer, as appropriate. approves an
application, they shall include a condition of approval requiring that, no later than
20 days after completion of the development, the applicant provide postconstruction
photographs of the same shoreline yegetation and developed site(s).




Dacusign Envelopa ID: CB49749C-9166-404B-A3 5-026B9118C0BR

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 44 — Shoteland Zoning, Related to Shoreline
Vegetation and Development Site Photographs

Municipal Officers’ Certification of Official Toxt of a Proposed Ovdinance

To the Town Cletk of the Town of Eliot, Maine:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this certificate is a true copy
of the official text of an ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendiments of Chapter 44 —
Shoreland Zoning, Related to Shoreline Vegetation and Developmc;nt Site Photographs™, which is
(0 be presented to the voters for their consideration on November 2, 2021,

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete text of the
ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for distribution to the voters, and you
will ensure that copies are available at the town meeting/polling places on the day of the vote,

Dated: Cl%@ﬂ,‘i}_z&_. 2021

Alexandros Orestis, Chairman
Bocullgaad

Kichard Donhanser

Richard Dbnhﬁmﬁﬁﬁww@c}mirman

e DOgURIG A by
, rﬁobwf' Meplayson,
Robert McPHeRpieaerbiary

Cooudigned by!

r.;\,_,.__f.d.,uLaL_

Wﬂhmn i:'ESZUOGFFFFdﬂ'!Cﬂ...

Rooudiyhod byt
r- Dow

Lauren Dovr-04co10A76438.

Select Board
Town of Lliot, Maine



DocuSign Envelope ID: CR497490-9166-404B-A316-C28B91160DBR

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 ~ Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 ~ Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales
August 3, 2021 — Initial Planning Board review

August 9, 2021 »»Lega! review

August 17, 2021 — Planning Board public hearing; Planning Board recommends (3-0)
August 26, 2021 ~ Select Board recommends (4-0)

ARTICLE #5: Shall an Ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 ~
Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales” be enacted?

Background and rationale

Adds firewood sales as an allowed use in the Commercial-Industrial (C/1) zoning district, Creates
consistency since firewood sales are allowable in other zoning districts, and the C/I district’s
purpose (Section 45-289) includes encouraging commercial uses.



DocuSign Envelope 1D: CBAHT49C-8166-494B-A216-C28B0115CDBB

- Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 ~ Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

(New text underlined in bold)

[Note: This ordinance amendment uses Town Code sections that predated updates approved in
June 2021, While the Town has submitted those amendments to MuniCode, they have not yet
been incorporated into the MuniCode online code. The intention is to have this proposed
amendment revise the current (post-June-2021) code,|

Sec. 45-290, - Table of permitted and prohibited uses. [prior to June 2021-approved changes]

The following table of land uses designates permitted uses by a yes and prohibited uses by &
no. Any use not listed is a prohibited use, The letters CEO, SPR, and SD are explained in section

45-402.

Table of Land Uses
Land uses R |8 v C/1
Accessory dwelling unit CEO |CEO  [CEOQ  |CEO
Agriculiure, except animal-breeding and care yes |yes yes 0o
Animal breeding yos ! [12 SPR % no
Animal husbandry ves! |lyes!  Jyes! [no
Apartment house, see multiple-family dwelling I (. — -
Apariment, see single-family dwellings —_— | — e
Agquaculture 13 113 SPR®  [no
Assisted living facility no  {SPR/SD |SPR/SD |SPR/SD
Auto graveyatds SPR. {no no no
Auto junkyard no  {no no )
Auto recycling business 5 9 no SPR
Auto recycling operation 9 no ne SPR




DacusSign Envelope iD: GB407490-9166-404B-A315-026806115C0RB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 — Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

fAuto recycling operation, limited . 9 9 no |SPR
Auto repair garages 14 114 SPR® [SPR
Auto service stations ' no |9 no SPR
Banks Bo  Ino SPR SPR
Bathhouse 11 |11 no 1no
IBathing beach yes |ves yes no
Bed and breakfasts 14 14 SPR® |[SPR
!Boardi-ng homes, see lodging businesses e —
Boarding kennel no |no no SPR
Bulk oil fuel tanks no |no no SPR. 2
 Business office 14 114 SPR® [SPR
Campgrounds - ISPR [no o - |no-
Cemeteries SPR. {SPR SPR no
Clearing yes |yes yes yes
Clinics no (0o no SPR ‘
Clustered housing SPR |no no no
Commercial adult enterprise 0o |no no SPR
‘Commercial establishment, 2 or more whare allowed - 9 00 SPR.
Day nurseriesl | SPR |16 SPR® |SPR
EBarth material removal, less than 100 cubio yards yes  |yes yes yes
100 cubic yards or greater SPR [SPR SPR - |SPR.
{Elder[y housing no  [SPR/SD S'PR/SD SPR/SD
|




DouSign Envelope 1D; CB49749C-9166-4048-A3156-C26B9115CDBR

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 — Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

Emergency operations yes lyes yes yes
Equipment ;storage, tracks, 3 or more no |no 120 yes
{Bssential services yes  |yes yes yes
Expanosion of an exisﬁng telecommunication structure or

collocation of antenna on a existing telecommunication CEO |CEO CEO CEO
structure or alternate tower structure

Farm equipment stores SPR {10 no SPR
Fences . yes lyes®  |yes? yesa‘5
Firewood sales yes |13 SPR ® ‘ 00 yes
Fireworks sales 0% no®  no?®  |no®
Forest management, excopt timber harvesting yes  |yes yes yes
Funeral establishment no |no SPR SPR
Gambling casino no  ino no 1no
Gardening yes |yes yes yes
Gasoline stations | no {9 1no SPR.
Governmental buildings or uses SPR.{SPR SPR SPR
(irain or feed stores SPR 110 no SPR
Harvesting wild crops yes  jyes yes yes
Home business BSPR SPR®  [SPR® [no
Home ocoupations 10 (10 no no
Home office CEQ |CEO  {CEO  CEO
Hospitals no  |no no SPR




Docudign Envelope ID: CB44749C-8166-494B-A316-C26B0115COBR

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 —~ Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

Indoor commercial, recreational and amusement

fucilities no  fno no |sprR
Industrial and business research laboratory no  |no no SPR
Industrial establishments and uses no  (no no SPR
Institutional buildings and uses, indoor no |9 no no
Junkyards no |no no 10
Laﬁdﬁll, dump - no  {no no no’
Libraries SPR. |SPR SPR SPR
Life care facility no  {SPR/SD [SPR/SD {SPR/SD
Lodging businesses, including bed and breakfasts,. : _
boarding homes or houses, hotels, inns, lodginghouses, 14 (14 SPR® |SPR
rooming homes, and the like‘

Manufacturing o ¢ lSPR®|SPR®  [sPR
Marijuana establishment* no  [no no SPR 2!
Mobile home parks ggR?j 7S PR/SD ?PR/SD no
Motel ho 0o no SPR
Multiple-family dwelling no SPR SPR no
Musoums SPR |SPR  {SPR  {SPR
:nkﬂc‘lar h;:;;l:inlction of telecommunication structure 70 feet 9 9 o SPR
:%e\ge ;:f;:?;;uction of telecommunication structure less than CEO lCRO  |CEO CEO
!Nonproﬁt medical marfjuana dispensary no  (no Do SPR 1?




Docusign Envelope 1D: CB497400-9166-4848-A315-02680116CDBB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 — Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

Nurseries, plants CEO [17 SPRS  Ino

Nursing facility no |SPR SPR SPR
Off-site parking no  |no no no

Parks SPR ISPR SFR no

Places of worship SPR. {SPR SPR SPR
Playgrounds SPR ISPR SPR. no

Printing plant 14 |14 SPRE® ISPR
Produce and plants raised locally, seasonal sales yes |yes yes 10

Professional offices 14 |14 SPR®  |SPR
Public wtility facilities SPR |SPR SPR SPR
Recreational facilities, nonintensive SPR. |SPR SPR no

Recreational-use not requiring structures SPR. |yes yes 1o

Restaurant * 9 |9 SPR® |SPR
Restaurant, talceéut no  |no no SPR
Retail stores, local, other 18 |18 SPRE |SPR
Road coastretion CEO |CEO |CEO  |SPR
Schools ‘ SPR[SPR SPR. SPR
Sewage disposal systems, private CEO {CEQO  {CEO  |CEO
Signs, 6 square feet CEO |CEO CEO CEO
Signs, other CEO |CEO CEO -~ |CEO
Single-family dwellings . CRO {CEO  |CEO  [no®
Small wind energy system SPR. {SPR SPR SPR




DacuSign Envelops [D: CB49749C-9166-404B-A31 5-C26B9115CDBB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 — Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

Solar energy system CEO |CEO  |[CEO CEO
Surveying and resource analysis yes |yes yes yes
ETimber harvesting yes  |yes yes yes

j Truck terminals and storage no |no no SPR
%'I‘wo»family dwellings CEO {CEO  {CEBO |no$
iVeterinary hospital 15 |15 No SPR
}Warehouse | " |no fno 1o 8PR
L

IWaste containers _-,CBO CEO® |CEO® |{CRO3
Wholosale : no {no 1o SPR
Wholesale business facilities : . I ne  ino 1o SPR
EUses similar to allowed uses : CEO [CEO  [CEO CEQ
“Uscs similar to uses requiring a CEQ permit o - |CEOQ |CEO |CEO  {CEO

Uses similar to uses requiring a planning board:

. | |SPR |SPR  |SPR  |SPR
permit .

*Marijuana establishment is defined in section 11-3 of this Code,

Notes:

p—

Buildings housing animals shall be no less than 100 feet from property lines.

2. Bachbulk ¢il fuel tank shall not exceed 50,000 gallons in size and use shall be limited to local
use only.

3. Only as an accessory to an allowed principal use on the lot. Must conform to the requirements
of 45-422, Waste containers.

4. Individual stores shall not have more than 2,500 square feet of gross floor area, except stores
located on Route 236 may have up to 5,000 square feet, Customer sales arcas shall be confined
to one floor.



DecuSlgn Envelope D CRASTASC.0 B8-494B-A316-C26BD1160DER

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 — Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

10.

1.

12,

13,

14,

15,

16.

17,

18,

19,
20,
21,

Must conform to the requirements of section 45-423.
Seo section 45-192(b) for an exception on accessory uses and structures.

See division 2 of article V of chapter 41 of this Code for specific areas where mobile home
parks are allowed.

Must conform to the requirements of section 45-456,1 Home business,

Use is prohibited unless property abuts Route 236, If property abuts Route 236, use is "SPR"
and must be visually screened from abutting (same street side) non-commercial properties.

Use is prohibited unless property abuts Route 236, If property abuts Route 236, use is "SPR"
and must be visually screened from abutting (same street side) non-commercial properties,

Use is prohibited umless property abuts Route 236, If property abuts Route 236, use is "CEO"
and must be visually screened from abutting (same street side) non-conumercial properties.

Use i "SPR | & 8" unless property abuts Route 236, If property abuts Route 236, use is
"GPR 1" and mwst be visually screened from ebuiting (same street side) non-commercial
properties,

Use is "SPTL 8" unless property abuts Route 236, If property abuts Route 236, use is "yes"
and must be visually screened from abutting (same street side) non-commercial properties.

Use is "SPR. 8" unless property abuts Route 236, If property abuts Route 236, use is "SPR"
and must be visaally screencd from. abuiting (same street side) non-commetcial properties,

Use is prohibited unless property abuts Route 236, If property abuts Route 236, use is "SPR"
and must be visually sereened from abutting (same street side) non~commercial properties in
accordance with Sec. 33-175(n), Overnight boarding and outdoor kenneling of animals is
prohibited in the rural and suburban zoning districts.

Use Is "SPR. 8" unless propetty abuts Route 236. If property abuts Route 236, use is "SPR"
and must be visually screened from abuiting (same street side) noncommercial properties.

Use is "SPR. 8" unless property abuts Route 236, If property abuts Route 236, use is "CEO"
and must be visually screened from abutting (same street side) noncommercial properties.

Use is "SPR. 8" unless property abuts Route 236, If property abuts Route 236, use is "SPR
4" and must be visvally screened from abutting (same street side) noncommercial properties.

Must conform to the requirements of section 33-189,
See chapter 12 for additional regulations pertaining to the sale and use of fireworks,
Must conform to the requirements of section 33-190,

(T.M. of 11-2-82; TM, of 6-26-85; T.M. of 11-23-85; T.M. of 11-4-86; T.M., of 4-21-87; T.M.
of 3-19-88; T.M., of 12-20-89, (§ 207); T.M., of 12-15-93; Amend. of 3-25-95; T M. of 3-27-
99(1), § 5; Ord., of 3-25-00(1); T.M. of 3-16-02, (art, 3), (art. 4); T.M. of 6-19-01, (art. 6), (art.
7); T.M. of 11-5-02; T.M. of 11-4-03; T.M., of 11-4-03; T'M. of 3-20-04; T.M. of 6~14-08; T.M.
of 6-12-2010(3); T M., of 6-18-2011(6); TM. of 11-8-2011; T.M. of 6-16-2012(1); T.M, of 6-16-
2012(2); T.M., of 11-5-2019(5); T.M. of 7:14-2020(5).)



DocuSlgn Envelope ID: CB49740C-0166-404B-A315-C28RBa11500B8B

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 — Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

Cross reference—— Review procedures and standards for site review requirements in the zoning
table of uses, § 33-56 ot seq,



DocuSign Envelope tD: CB49749C-9166-494B-A315-C26B9115CDBB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 45 - Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales

Mounicipal Officers’ Certification of Official Text of a Proposed Ordinance
To the Town Clerk of the Town of Eliot, Maine:

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this certificate is a true
copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter
45 — Zoning, Related to Firewood Sales”, which is to be presented to the voters for their
consideration on November 2, 2021,

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S. A, § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the complete text of the
ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for distribution to the voters, and
you will ensure that copies are available at the town meeting/polling places on the day of the

vote,

Dated: ( z ggmszi QQ, 2 021

Alexandros Orestis, Chairman

DocuSigned by:

Cichard Danleanser
Richard D&miﬁﬁﬁ&”@i’?ﬁ'@i% Chairman
= DeauSlgned by:

Kotk MePlitrson,
Robert McPheissasSesretary

~Docusigned by:

bl Loisdos

Mamw FFFAOATS...

Docusignad by:
r Dow

Lauren DO 04G9118AB179400...

Select Board
Town of Eliot, Maine

10



Docuslyn Envelope |D: CB40740C-91066-454B-A315-C26B8811500BR

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 7 — Animal Control, Related to Rooster Noise

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 7 — Animal Control, Related to Rooster
Noise

August 26, 2021 — Select Board voted to place on the ballot, with revisions; voted 2-2 on actual

recommendation on article

ARTICLE #6: Shall an Ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 7 —
Animal Control, Related to Rooster Noise” be enacted?

Background and rationale

Modifies Section 7-8 to suthorize the Town to address frequent or persistent, loud, and
unreasonable rooster noise that causes disturbance on other properties, unless such regulation is
preempted by state statute. Adds a definition of “rooster” to Section 1-2.



DocuSign Envelope ID: CB49749C-0166-494B-A316-C2689115CDBB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 7 — Animal Control, Related to Rooster Noise

New text in bold underline

Sec, 7-2. — Definitions

[Add a new definition] Rooster shall mean an adult male domestic chicken.

Sec. 7-8. - Animal noise.

(a) Owning, possessing or harboring any domestic animal that frequently or for the
continued duration makes loud and unreasonable sounds that creates a disturbance
on other properties shall be prohibited. For purposes of this chapter, a dog that
barks, bays, howls, cries or makes any other noise continuously and/or incessantly
fora period of ten minutes or barks intermittently for one-half hour or more to the
disturbance of any person at any time of day or night, regardless of whether the
dog is physically situated in or upon private property is considered a public
nuisance, However, this shall not include a dog if, at the time the dog is barking
or-making any other noise, a person is trespassing or threatening to trespass upon
private property in or upon which the dog is situated, or for any other legitimate
cause which teased or provoked the dog.

(b) Owning, possessing, or harboring a rooster that frequently or for a duration
of at least thirty (30) minutes makes loud and unreasonable sounds that
create a disturbance on other properties shall be prohibited, except that
nothing in this paragraph shall be interpreted to supersede the Maine
Agriculture Protection Act (7 MRSA 151 et seq) or any other applicable state
statute.




DoouSlgn Envelope ID: CB49740C-9166-404B-A315-C2689116CDEB

Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chapter 7 - Animal Control, Related to Rooster Noise

Municipal Officers’ Certification of Official Text of a Proposed Ordinance
To the Town Clerk of the Town of Eliot, Maine;

We hereby certify to you that the document to which we have affixed this certificate is a true
copy of the official text of an ordinance entitled “Proposed Town Code Amendments of Chaptor
7 — Animal Control, Related to Rooster Noise”, which is to be presented to the voters for their
consideration on November 2, 2021,

Pursuant to 30-A M.R.S.A. § 3002(2), you will retain this copy of the completo text of the
ordinance as a public record and make other copies available for distribution to the voters, and
you will ensure that copies are available at the town meeting/polling places on the day of the
vote.

Dated: %M&Z!@ 202

Alexandros Orestis, Chairman

w Do Slgnadl hy:
rﬁdwi Dovdansiy
Richard DorBEHEE 0 Chairman

*DosiBigned by
r!@otfm‘ MePlurson,
Robert MOPHREER Utetary

Doaudinnd by:

LJJ.«UJU\J“\ L{ A 1/J| v,
William W—fcﬁezaaowmo-ms...

Rooudignad by;
FMWLW Dow

St .
Latren DOGrMer s,

Select Board
Town of Elfot, Maine



O e~ O U1 =W N

I P B W W W W W W W NN RN NN NNRNRDNR B B OB R R R
W MR = O WwWo -~ WD W RE OWweo -\, WREO WSO h WRNER O

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM
Town Hall (hybrid)

Quorum noted

A, 5:30 PM: Meeting called to order by Chairperson Orestis.

B. Roll Call: Mr. Donhauser — Acting Chair, Mr, McPherson, Mr. Widi, and Ms. Dow.

Absent: Mr. Orestis (excused).

Pledge of Allegiance recited

Moment of Silence observed for the 9/11 Anniversary

C. Public Comment/Requests:

5:32 PM

Gene Wypyski — Update Community & Business Directory

Mr. Wypyski, Creek Crossing, said that T am here to give everyone the Eliot
Community & Business Directory; that perhaps some folks have already seen this
in the mail. T was here in March. We proposed a business directory for Eliot. 1
asked for money to print and mail it and this is the result. It was a pretty
successful effort. If you open up to where there is a piece of paper it shows that
we sent out to about 3,200 to 3,300 addresses in Eliot. We listed 238 businesses
and I found 223 businesses in Eliot. Of those, 50 people paid to bold their listing
or place a display ad in the directory. It was those display ads I was able to sell to
these businesses, which funded the festival. My pitch was that it was exposure for
them, it is cheap advertising, it’s direct mail, and the Town supports you and
that’s why we’re doing it, If you want to do an upgrade with bolding or a display,
100% goes to a bigger and better festival in the fall, I contacted probably 130 to
140 businesses to get them ponied up. The bottom line was that you guys invested
$7,500 in the project and the Festival Day Commiitee made $13,125. Some other
benefits, in addition to just having up-to-date information out there, and last one
was done in 2013 and I also had one by the Lion’s Club done in 1995 and it was
startling to see how similar this is in terms of the companies and format, etc.
Several times people perceived it as a partnership between the Town and
businesses. People perceived me as being a Town officer or Town official; that I
explained what my role was and got comments like, “Appreciate the Town
reaching out.” and “This is good.”, “It’s free to us.”, etc. In other words, “yeah
you want money for the festival. We understand that,” But, also, people were
willing to kind of step into the notion that maybe the Town’s starting to reach out
to the business community, which I think is positive for Town leadership to know
that people are anxious to see that kind of stuff, that kind of synergy start to
happen. Thank you for your support and look forward to seeing everybody
September 25, last Saturday in September.




44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55
56
57
58
59
60
61
62
63
64
65
66
67
68
69
70
71
72
73
74
75
76
77
78
79
80
81
82
83
84
85
86

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

The SB thanked Mr. Wypyski very much for his efforts. It looks great.

Mr. Wypyski said that I love the Festival and it’s a win-win.

D. Approval of Minutes of Previous Meeting(s)
There were no minutes tonight.

E. Department Head/Committee Reports

5:36 PM 1) Approval of Sewer Allocation - 12 Lilac Lane
Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Select Board approve the
sewer allocation of 120 gallons per day to 12 Lilac Lane.
Roll Call Vote:
Mr. Donhauser — Yes
Mr. McPherson - Yes
Mr. Widi — Yes
Ms. Dow - Yes
Unanimous vote to approve motion.

5:37 PM 2) Fire Chief — New Fire Truck Update

Chief Muzeroll said that we are moving forward with the purchase of the truck.
We’ve done two inspections on the vehicle and the third inspection, final
inspection, will be done prior to being delivered. Further work should be
completed, hopefully, before the 1* week in December. It’s been a long process
and we’re replacing an older truck. There are a number of things I'm going to be
coming to the SB for in the future other than what I’'m coming to you here. How
are we going to pay for the remaining balance, which is going to be around
$300,000. Mr. Miles has some ideas as to how we should pay for it moving
forward, whether it comes totally out of the reserve fund or we do a
lease/purchase or Master lease program with all the other equipment that the
Town is looking to purchase, from dump trucks to police cruisers to everything
else. Those are probably things we’ll discuss as an agenda item in the middle of
next month, or so. The basis for me being here tonight is that the committee has
worked very hard, as a group of 10 people, from the department of all different
positions to identify how we would like to outfit the truck and what makes sense
to outfit the truck, not just move old equipment to a new vehicle but maybe



87
38
39
90
91
92
93
94
95
96
97
98
99
100
101
102
103
104
105
106
107
108
109
110
111
112
113
114
115
116
117
118
119
120
121
122
123
124
125
126
127
128
129

5:40 PM

5:42 PM

5:43 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

upgrade some equipment on that truck. You will see in that list that I gave you
that it all comes with a value; that we are looking at about $23,000 to $24,000 of
additional equipment that would make this top of the line. That is everything from
hand tools to hose. There is a clerical error on page 2 where it says
recommendations; that it’s not $25, it’s $25,000. Ill entertain any questions,
reminding the SB that we were able to allocate $132,000 from TIF funding to go
towards the purchase of this truck so that additional $25,000 is still within that
$600,000 range, it’s just that we saved $132,000 and took it from another fund,
We’re not changing the end price, just adding some equipment that we think is
necessary. [ did provide you with a suggested motion on a separate piece of paper
that may help.

Ms. Dow said that there is already a Fire Truck Fund.

Chief Muzeroll said that we already have the Fire Truck Reserve Fund. It’s an
ongoing addition every year to support this purchase and future purchases.

Mr. Donhauser said that, each year, we add to that fund.

Chief Muzeroll agreed. We are finally getting a bit more aggressive, as we should
be, and I think we’re in the $100,000/vear range. That’s why, when we do the
meeting in the future, here, as to how we’re going to pay for that, we’re going to
have specific money that’s available and those options and, then, we cam make
decisions as to how the final check will be written and where that money will
come from.

Mr, Widi said a backstory regarding the fire truck, we anticipated it would cost
$500,000 and it came in at $600,000+. That’s why the money isn’t sitting there.

Chief Muzeroll said that we paid half of it, up front, {o save a few. I think we
saved 2% % by paying $300,000, up front, of money we already had, this past
year. That is something I’ve tried to do over the years, negotiate a pre-payment. I
don’t want to give it all to them.

Mr. Widi moved, second by Mr. McPherson, that the Select Board authorize
the Treasurer allocate up to $25,000 for the purpose of purchasing additional
new equipment for the new 2021 Smeal/Spartan Fire Truck. Funds to be
allocated from the Fire Truck Reserve Account.

DISCUSSION

Mr. Donhauser asked if Mr. Tessier had any comments, being here representing
the Budget Committee.



130
131
132
133
134
135
136
137
138
139
140
141
142
143
144
145
146
147
148
149
150
151
152
153
154
155
156
157
158
159
160
161
162
163
164
165
166
167
168
169
170
171
172

5:45 PM

5:47 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

Mr. (Jim) Tessier, Johnson Lane, clarified that I didn’t run for the Budget
Committee this term so I am no longer a member. As a former member of the
Budget Committee, as Chief Muzeroll said, last year there was only $480,000
allocated in the Fire Truck Reserve Fund and that number didn’t get updated until
December to the $600,000. Then, that got bumped up to $625,000 and now we’re
art another roughly $25,000. I'm not in any way criticizing the Chief because
we’ve got a long-term period of about 25 years from the previous truck to this
one. It’s hard to get accurate numbers but I think, going forward, it would be
really helpful to the Town, the Budget Committee, and the SB if we all tried the
best we can to periodically update these numbers so we don’t get that $120,000
surprise when we have to order a truck. I think that would help the Town out over
time.

Chief Muzeroll said that we are in a long process of purchasing the difference
between purchasing the 2002 fire truck, which was the last one we bought, and
guesstimating what a 2021 fire truck would be. There are a number of factors that
are involved with the purchase of a new vehicle. No one was more surprised than
[ was when this bare-minimum truck came in at; that [ understand what Mr.
Tessier is saying in that it was a best-guess scenario. We have a little bit more
heightened awareness as to where the industry is going year after year after year
and we have some formulas that have been provided to us that will help us with
cost factors in the future. Some things that we cannot control are material costs
and labor costs. Those are what’s basically driving the cost of this vehicle. Yes,
the vehicle was $625,000. For Ms. Dow’s benefit, we were able to trade in the
other vehicle, which no other manufacturer or rep would allow us to do, for
$25,000. So, it will go out the door, somebody else is going to buy it somewhere
along the line for whatever they use it for, so the actual cost to the Town is
$600,000. Yes, we paid half up front and a lot of that decision was based on the
fact that of what we had for money and what we thought was going to happen
over the next 18 months.

Mr. Donhauser asked what makes a fire truck wear out.

Chief Muzeroll said that, in this case, the replacement of this one is mostly the use
of the pump, itself, and the cost-factor to re-build or refurbish it. Once a fire truck
approaches the 20-year mark, or the 25-year mark, it becomes increasingly
difficult to get parts off the shelf. Trucks are made of old razor blades now.
They’re not made out of raw steel. We don’t know where the steel is coming from
or how the aluminum was manufactured. So, we started seeing body wear-and-
tear. It’s like a car with 150,000 miles on it, after awhile it just doesn’t make
sense to keep throwing money into it because all you're going to have is a
$20,000 vehicle. My biggest concern is that we pump-test these things every year

4



173
174
175
176
177
178
179
180
181
182
183
184
185
186
187
188
189
190
191
192
193
194
195
196
197
198
199
200
201
202
203
204
205
206
207
208
209
210
211
212
213
214
215

5:48 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

to support the insurance surfaces office and that truck we are replacing does not
pass, on a yearly basis, the requirements to keep it as a front-line pumper. That’s
another driving cost and this vehicle, itself, is an expensive re-furb. It was going
to be around $60,000 to $65,000 to get the pump replaced and do all the things
that need to happen. But, when you get it all done, you still have a 1996 vehicle

DISCUSSION ENDED
Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser — Yes
My, McPherson - Yes
Mr. Widi — Yes

Ms. Dow - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.
3) Fire Chief — Radio Communication System

Chief Muzeroll said that we had suffered a failure in our new radio computer
repeater system and, according to everyone, we did not expect to lose our antenna,
which is actually transmitting and receiving our emergency signals, both for the
Fire Department and the Police Department. We started noticing a degradation in
the ability to effectively communicate, Shortly afier we had the wind event, which
the insurance company paid to replace a repeater last year. We are still
investigating but we think this was part of that initial damage and went
unidentified. It continued to degrade and how those connections are made inside
the antenna has made it virtually useless, We’re back to where we were before.
The Police and Fire Departments can’t talk on portable. So, after lots of pushing
and shoving with 2-Way, they finally got it tested and identified that the antenna
needs to be replaced, as it’s a non-repairable item. You’ll see that T have a
proposal for them to the tune of about $6,000. The most expensive portion of the
whole thing are the fools that climb the radio tower to replace the equipment. A
side story to this is, until that antenna is down on the ground, they cannot
effectively determine whether it is broken. I’m hoping, with their verbiage, that
I’ll be able to file an amendment to our initial insurance claim and that we can
recover some of this money. That is why that motion reads the way that it does;
that just in case we can’t, we need to pay for it. It isn’t something I or the Police
Chief have in our budgets. The extra $1,000 in the motion is just in case
something else is determined that it needs to be replaced once they get it down off
the tower, which is the one out behind York Woods on Route 236. Either way, I
will authorize them, and push thern, and they are going to repair it next Friday,
weather permitting, For the sake of safety, I told them to go ahead and do it...if I

5



216
217
218
219
220
221
222
223
224
225
226
227
228
229
230
231
232
233
234
235
236
237
238
239
240
241
242
243
244
245
246
247
248
249
250
251
252
253
254
255
256
257
258

5:51 PM

5:53 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

have to pay for it out of Bobby’s pocket (chuckles all around). This is a rarity.
I’ve had some assurances from 2-Way and Motorola that they very, very rarely
see that; that this antenna is spec’d to be 160 mph wind-resistant. So, there we are.

Mr. Widi talked with the Treasurer about using some of the extra funds from the
Police Department budget from last year and he thought it was better served if
that money be used towards funding the School Resource Officer, going forward,
because there’s a deficit, there, and we could do that without having to use those
funds.

Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Select Board authorize the
Treasurer to pay up to $7,000 to 2-Way Communication for the repair of the
radio repeater antenna. Funds to be appropriated from the Contingency
Fund. Any recapture of funds from insurance claims or other means to be
allocated back to that fund.

Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser — Yes
Mr. McPherson - Yes
Mr. Widi — Yes

Ms. Dow - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.
4) Town Manager Report

Ms. Granfield said that the time capsule is being sealed at Heritage Day at
Hammond Park and the Bicentennial Committee is in the process of having a
bronze plaque made, which takes several weeks. They just advised me recently
that they have scheduled a date to actually bury the capsule Friday, October 15t
at 10 AM. We looked at locations and it’s going to be somewhere between the
gazebo and the park bench. The reason that date and time was selected is that they
coordinated it with the school because they want the school children to be a part
of it and because they will actually be around 50 years from now. We continue to
have several boards with the Zoom hybrid meetings. This month the Aging-in-
Place Committee and the Board of Appeals will be holding public hearings to see
if they are going to forth and adopt that policy. Some positive news with the
American Rescue Plan — the ARPA funds. I’ve officially applied for it and
we’ve been having correspondence. We had to fill out a lot of information.
Actually, the amount has gone up since the first estimate we received and the
amount we’ll be receiving is $729,593.96. Once the funds are received, we are
placing them in a separate account and, then, once the SB and the Town



259
260
261
262
263
264
265
266
267
268
269
270
271
272
273
274
275
276
277
278
279
280
281
282
283
284
285
286
287
288
289
290
291
292
293
294
295
296
297
208
299
300
301

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

determine what uses you want to have for those funds, we can draw it out of those
accounts. You’ll be pleased to hear that we received an initial draft of the 2020
audit and anticipate that Smith & Associates will provide a presentation to the SB
at your October 14" meeting, We’ve added contact information on the website.
The new Health Officer’s email and phone number so people can contact her if
they need to get in touch with her. We have hired two new employees. Onc is
Ann Lucgord who is the new recording secretary for the Board of Appeals and
can also fill in if we have a need on some of our other boards. We also hired
Brendan Crosby as the new Program Coordinator for the Community Services
Department. Lastly, I wanted to note that I attended the York County Manager’s
Mecting, they have monthly meetings, and we talked a lot about ARPA funding
and what uses the county was using. One thing that will impact our public safety
department is that one of the items they will be doing is building a significantly-
sized training center there. In particular for Fire, Police, and EMS personnel and
this way our folks won’t have to go all the way up north, plus, it will be open 24/7
and the departments are excited about that. They can go there to attend their
training when they are not working so it should be positive, That’s going to be
located in Alfred, They have several other infrastructure projects. They are
updating the jail, and such. That’s all T have to report right now. Any questions I
would be happy to answer.

K. New Business:

5:58 PM

1) Approval of Special Town Referendum for November 2, 2021

Mr. Donhauser said that we are basically calling a special meeting and we need a
motion to actually do that.

Mr. Widi moved, second by Mr. McPherson, that the Select Board accept the
November 2021 Town Meeting Referendum Warrant, as written.

Roll Call YVote:

Mr. Ponhauser — Yes
Mr. McPherson - Yes
Mr. Widi —- Yes

Ms, Dow - Yes

Unanimous vete to approve motion.



302
303
304
305
306
307
308
309
310
311
312
313
314
315
316
317
318
319
320
321
322
323
324
325
326
327
328
329
330
331
332
333
334
335
336
337
338
339
340
341
342
343
344

5:59 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

2) Request to Disband Solid Waste & Recycling Committee (SW&RC)

Ms. Granfield said that you have a letter from Mr. Tessier and a brief staff report
about the request.

Mr. (Jim) Tessier, Chair, said that a little over a year ago the recycling program
was dealing with some significant challenges. We were not able to use the
recycling building because of the virus and, as a result, there was almost no
recycling going on in Town. There were changes in the recycling world and, as a
result, Maine commodities we collect there wasn’t a market for or it was a very
reduced market so the pricing we were getting went down substantially. Also, the
State changed their policy in how they handle funding for redemptions and, as a
result, some of the local redemption centers closed. The ones that were still open
were charging us pretty high fees to come collect the material so that put us back
quite a bit. Shortly after all these problems occurred, the Public Works Director
put containers outside the building so people didn’t have to go in the building.
They could just drop off those materials at those containers outside so that helped
us get back into recycling right away. So, here we are a little more than a year
later and things at the Transfer Station are almost back to normal. The various
markets world-wide are improving a lot. There are more mills coming online; that
they produce cardboard and that’s helping the recycling efforts. And commodity
prices have come up a lot, starting to recover quite a bit. An example of that is the
#2 HDPE, which are the milk bottles, over the last several months the pricing for
recycling products and those milk jugs has gone up to around $1.00/pound. I’ve
been on this committee for over 20 years and I have never seen that price much
over $.50, so, that’s a substantial increase. The other commodities haven’t gone
up anywhere near that but they are going in the right direction. Cardboard is going
up, aluminum is going up and, even miscellaneous paper, that a year ago there
was absolutely no market for and we had to throw that in the trash, the market is
actually increasing now and we are selling it, which will be a great help to the
Town. As a result of these significant improvements, at our last SW&RC meeting
we discussed whether we felt we needed to stay as a committee, because we’ve
been doing this for over 20 years. The committee felt, because of all the
improvements and things at the Transfer Station are going really, really well,
markets are improving, things are pretty stable, and also talked with the Public
Works Director who felt it was an appropriate time to disband the committee. The
PW Director said that, if they need some help at some point with some particular
issue, he could come to the SB and ask to set up an ad-hoc committee to deal with
that specific issue rather than keep our committee on full-time. That’s why ['m
here. We are recommending you disband the committee but, as part of this
process, I really want to thank all the current members of the committee. There’s
Bud Moynahan, there’s Donald Webber, there’s Corrine Carignan, there’s Pam
Mondschein; that they have all been a tremendous help, as well as all the other



345
346
347
348
349
350
351
352
353
354
355
356
357
358
359
360
361
362
363
364
365
366
367
368
369
370
371
372
373
374
375
376
377
378
379
380
381
382
383
384
385
386
387

6:04 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

members who have been a part of this process for the last 20 years. I would really
like to call the attention of the SB to Bud Moynahan. Ie has been on this
committee since day one since it started over 20 years ago. In addition to that, he
was on the first committee that actually participated in building the recycling
building and started recycling in Eliot. He has gone above and beyond the call of
duty, I feel in the Town and has been a tremendous asset to this committee. One
other thing, after I sent out a memo to you requesting a disbandment, I received
an email from Rosanne Adams from the Bicentennial Committee requesting that
we add something to the Eliot time capsule so I am working with the committee
trying to put some things together, What I would ask is, if you agree to disband
the committee, for you to set a date at the end of September as a time for
disbanding to allow us to work on putting something together. I’d be happy to
answer any questions.

Mr. Donhauser said that, without your committee having some oversight at the
Transfer Station, do you think that’s a good thing in your own mind. I like the
comfort of the committee having some oversight.

M. Tessier said that [ think that Mr. Robinson (DPW Director) is doing a
fantastic job out there, He’s paying a lot of attention to the Transfer Station and
working with the committee to do a lot but he’s also got a great staff. They just
recently updated the Transfer Station portion of the Town website. It is super and
they have done a fantastic job. I would really encourage you to look at it. The
committee put together a map that shows the layout of the Transfer Station and
where everything is, and that’s on the website, along with many other great
updates. So, I think with that, with all the work the committee has done over the
last several years, and what Public Works has done, the Town is in really good
shape. Back in 2013, or so, the Town was spending over $400,000/year to run the
Transfer Station and, after that, we went to Pay-to-Throw and the food waste
program, and that number has dropped down to around $250,000/year. The Town
has been saving substantial amounts of money and the Transfer Station has
revenue from the recycling because the Town is doing source-separated recycling
bales, explaining that source-separated means that people are separating out their
milk jugs and aluminum cans and plastic bottle, and so on. They are feeding the
balers and, then, the staff makes the bales. When the staff takes that bale out of
the baler, it’s a nice clean bale, not contaminated with other things. Because those
bales are so clean and well-made, that’s a commodity that is desired by the
manufacturers. The bales coming out of single-stream recycling, the paper and
cardboards are contaminated with broken glass and plastic and vice-versa and, as
a result, they are a much poorer quality. I think the Town is well-positioned and I
think that Mr. Robinson and his staff are doing a really good job, There’s a
possibility, if the committee is still around, if you have an issue or Mr. Robinson
feels he needs some help, he can call us to help him look at something, He can



388
389
390
391
392
393
394
395
396
397
398
399
400
401
402
403
404
405
406
407
408
409
410
411
412
413
414
415
416
417
418
419
420
421
422
423
424
425
426
427
428
429
430

6:08 PM

6:09 PM

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

call me at any time, as I stay plugged in with the Northeast Recovery Association;
that I go to some of those meetings and there is a tremendous source of help there.
We’ve been a member there for many years.

Mr. Donhauser said that, at one time, we used to take recycling from York. The
Town didn’t continue that, as I understand that, because it was actually
contaminating some of our recycling.

Mr. Tessier said that we were taking their cardboard because they didn’t want to
deal with it and, because we were baling our cardboard anyway, we would take it
for free and bale it up and generate a little more revenue. They were not
monitoring their residents and the cardboard was getting contaminated, that it was
taking more time by the Eliot staff to clean the trash out of the cardboard than
what we were seeing for revenue, and that’s why we stopped taking it. As far as |
know, we haven’t restarted that.

Mr. McPherson said that everyone on the committee is on-board with disbanding
this.

Mr. Tessier said yes, along with Mr. Robinson.

Mr. Donhauser said to Mr. Tessier that you have done a fine, fine job and we
thank you.

Mr. Widi moved, second by Ms. Dow, that the Select Board disband the Solid
Waste Recycling Committee, effective October 15, 2021.

Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser — Yes
Mr. McPherson - Yes
Mr. Widi — Yes

Ms. Dow - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

G. Old Business:

There was no old business.

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

10



431
432
433
434
435
436
437
438
439
440
441
442
443
444
445
446
447
448
449
450
451
452
453
454
455
456
457
458
459
460
461
462
463
464
465
466
467
468
469
470
471
472
473

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

H. Approval of Warrant(s):

6:10 PM

Mr. Donhauser moved, second by Mr. McPherson, that the Select Board
approve A/P Warrant #14in the amount of $174,302.78, dated August 18,
2021; A/P Warrant #17 in the amount of $193,146.52, dated August 25, 2021;
A/P Warrant #143 in the amount of $1,702.96, dated August 18, 2021,

Roll Call Vote;

Mr. Donhauser — Yes
Mr. McPherson - Yes
Mr. Widi — Yes

Ms. Dow - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

I Selectmen’s Report:

6:11 PM

1) Seeking Committee Members
Mr. Donhauser said that we are always seeking commiitee members.

There were no Selectmen’s reports tonight,

J. Executive Session

6:12 PM

7:11 PM

Mr, Donhauser moved, second by Mr. McPherson, that the Select Board
enter into executive session as allowed by 1 MLR.S.A. § 405(6)(a) legal
consultation and §405(6)(e) contract negotiations.

Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser — Yes
Mr, McPherson - Yes
Mr. Widi— Yes

Ms. Dow - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

Out of executive session, There was no action taken.

K. Adjourn

11



474
475
476
477
478
479
480
481
482
483
484
485
486
487
488
489
490
491
492
493
494
495
496
497
498
499
500
501
502
503

Draft SELECT BOARD MEETING
September 9, 2021 5:30PM (continued)
Town Hall (hybrid)

7:12 PM Mr. Donhauser moved, second by Mr. Widi, that the Select Board adjourn.

Roll Call Vote:

Mr. Donhauser — Yes
Mr. McPherson - Yes
Mr. Widi — Yes

Ms. Dow - Yes

Unanimous vote to approve motion.

The meeting adjourned at 7:12 PM.

Respectfully submitted,

Ellen Lemire, Recording Secretary

Mr. Bob McPherson, Secretary

Date approved:

12



£

Fﬁif"’“’* RO

shb "rm '8 m %‘agﬁs
jﬁ 0]

TOWN OF ELIOT

ELIOT, MAINE

FINANCIAL AUDIT REPORT

JUNE 30, 2020



TOWN OF ELIOT
ELIOT, MAINE
JUNE 30, 2020

TABLE OF CONTENTS

FINANCIAL SECTION

Independent Auditors” Report
Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Financial Statements

Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement of Net Position
Statement of Activities

Fund Financial Statements

Governmental Funds

Balance Sheet

Reconciliation of the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet
to Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes
in Fund Balance of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget to Actual — General Fund

Proprietary Funds

Statement of Net Position

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position
Statement of Cash Flows

Notes to Financial Statements

Required Supplementary Information

Schedule of Town’s Proportionate Share of Net Pension Liability
Schedule of Town’s Pension Contributions
Schedules of Town’s Group Health Plan OPEB Liability and Related Ratios

EXHIBITS

Exhibit T
Exhibit I

Exhibit ITF

Exhibit IV
Exhibit V

Exhibit VI
Exhibit VII
Exhibit VIII

Exhibit TX
Exhibit X

Exhibit X1
Exhibit XII
Exhibits X111



Smith &Associates, CPAs

A Professional Association

500 US Route One, Suite 102 « Yarmouth, Maine 04056
Ph (207} 846-8881 « Fax (207) 846-8882
www.smithassociatescpa.com

REPORT OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

Independent Auditors’ Report

Select Board and Manager
TOWN OF ELIOT
Eliot, Maine

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town
of Eliot, Maine as of and for the year ended June 30, 2020, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the basic financial statements as listed in the table of
contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit, We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of material misstatements.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of financial statements in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the citcumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion, An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.



Independent Auditors’ Report Page 2

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town as of June 30, 2020 and the
respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof and the budgetary
comparison for the general fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matter

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A), the Schedule of the Town’s Proportionate Share
of Net Pension Liability, the Schedule of Town Pension Contributions, and the Schedule of the
Town’s Group Health Plan OPEB Liabilities and Related Ratios be presented to supplement the
basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required
supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s response to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the
basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October
4,2021 on our consideration of the Town of Eliot, Maine’s internal control over financial reporting
and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to
provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an
integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in
considering the Town of Eliot, Maine’s internal contro} over financial reporting and compliance.

SMITH & ASSOCIATES, CPAs
A Professional Association

Yarmouth, Maine
October 4, 2021



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This Management Discussion and Analysis is an analysis of the financial condition and operating
results of the Town for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020, written by Town management. The
purpose is to foster increased interest from citizenry and taxpayers and to provide an easily read
overview of the Town’s financial condition in conjunction with the audited financial statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

> The assets of the Town of Eliot exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal
year by $15,983,927 per Exhibit I (net position). Of this amount, $5,534,380 (unrestricted
net position) may be used to meet the Town’s ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.
The Town’s total net position increased by $1,317,345.

» At the close of the current fiscal year, the Town of Eliot’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $11,432,300, an increase of $1,381,636 over the prior
year. The amount of $4,124,053 is the General Fund Unassigned Fund Balance which is
available for appropriation in the next budget cycle and represents 25% of the total general
fund expenditures and transfers to other funds for the year,

» The Town of Eliot has $5,394,280 restricted for the Route 236 TIF District; $1,093,214
committed for Capital Projects and $613,489 committed for Special Revenues. See Note 9
for details of these and other funds.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis are intended to serve as an introduction to the Town of Eliot’s financial
statements. The Town’s financial statements are comprised of three components: 1) government-
wide financial statements, 2) fund financial statements, and 3) notes to the financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements: The governmeni-wide financial statements are
designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Town’s finances, in a manner similar to a
private-sector business,

The Statement of Net Position (Exhibit I) presents information on all of the Town’s assets and
liabilities as well as deferred outflows and inflows of resources, with the difference among these
reported as nef position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may setve as a useful
indicator of whether the financial position of the Town is improving or deteriorating.



Management Discussion & Analysis Page 2

The Statement of Activities (Exhibit IT) presents revenue and expenses and shows how the
government’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position
are reported in a manner similar to the approach used by a private-sector business in that revenues
ate recognized when earned or established criteria are satisfied and expenses are reported when
incurred. Accordingly, revenues are reported even when they may not be collected for several
months after the end of the accounting period and expenses are recorded even though they may not
have used cash during the current petiod.

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Town that are
principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other
functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and
charges (business-type activities).

Fund Financial Statements: A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain
control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The Town of
Eliot, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance-related legal requirements. All of the funds of the Town can be divided
into two categories: governmental funds and proprictary funds.

Governmental funds — Most of the Town’s basic services are reported in governmental funds, which
focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and balances left at year-end that are
available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called modified
accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted
to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town’s
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information
helps you determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the
near future to finance the Town’s programs., We describe the relationship (or differences) between
governmental activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities)
and governmental funds in reconciliations following the corresponding fund financial statements.

Proprietary funds — When the Town charges customers for the services it provides, these services
are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all
activities are reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities. The Town’s
Sewer Fund is reported as a proprietary fund and as a business-type activity.

Notes to the Financial Statements: The notes provide additional information that is essential to a
full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

COMPARATIVE DATA

The following tables provide a summary of the Town of Eliot’s net position and statement of
activities for the year ended June 30, 2020, with comparative data for the previous year. Net
position serves as a useful indicator of the Town’s financial position. Changes in net position
generally indicate the direction (positive and negative) of the Town’s financial health over time.



Management Discussion & Analysis Page 3
COMPARATIVE DATA (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF ELIOT’S NET POSITION
Governmental Business - Type
Activities Activities Total (Note A)
Condensed Statement of
Net Position 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
Assets
Current and Other Assets $ 12,623,993 §$ 11,064,959 § 646,027 § 456,122 $ 12,811,958 $ 11,251,385
Capital Assets 3.833.783 5.471.,247 2,945,918 1.316.975 6,779,701 6,788,222
Total Assets $ 16.457.776 $ 16.536.206 $ 3.591.945 $§ 1.773.097 $ 19.591.659 $ 18.039.607
Deferred OQutflows of
Resources § 391087 $.._ 367,543 % 0 % 0 8 391087 $  367.543
Liabilities
Current and Other Liabilities § 952,582 $ 747,228 § 6,024 § 0§ 500544 $§ 477,532
Long Term Liabilities 1,651,561 2,986,431 1,544,816 0 3,196,377 2,986,431
Total Liabilities $§ 2604143 $ 3.733.659 $ 1550840 $ 0 8§ 3696921 § 3.463,963
Deferred Inflows of
Resources $. 301898 $ 276,605 $ 0 3 0 § 301898 § 276,605
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital
Assets $ 3563373 § 3,725461 $§ 1,401,102 $§ 1316975 $ 4964475 % 5,042.436
Restricted 5,485,072 4,738,734 0 0 5,485,072 4,738,734
Unrestricted 4,894,377 4.429.290 640,003 456,122 5,534,380 4,885.412
Total Net Position 1 22 $ 12893485 § 2.041.105 8§ 1,773,097 $ 15983927 § 14,666,582

Note A — Net of elimination of intra-government receivables and payables of $458,062 and $269,696,

respectively.

The first portion of the Town’s net position reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land,

buildings, machinery, and equipment), less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still
outstanding. The Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town’s investment in its capital assets is
reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be
provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

An additional portion of the Town’s net position represents resources that are subject to external
restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted net position
$5,534,380 (prior year $4,885,412) may be used to meet the governments’ ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town is able to report positive balances in all three
categories of net position, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate
government and business-type activities. The same situation held true for the prior year. The
Town’s net position increased by $1,317,345 during the current fiscal year as shown in Exhibit I1.



Management Discussion & Analysis Page 4
COMPARATIVE DATA (CONTINUED)
TOWN OF ELIOT’S CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Governmental Business — Type
Activities Activities Total
Condensed Statement of
Activities 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19 30-Jun-20 30-Jun-19
Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charge for Services $ 512,760 $ 651,511 $ 592,581 § 602,836 $ 1,105,341 § 1,254,347
Grants and Contributions 35,280 34,704 0 0 35,280 34,704
General Revenues
Property and Other Taxes 16,064,752 15,938,337 0 0 16,064,752 15,938,337
Grants and Confributions Not
Restricted to Specific
Programs 834,438 682,859 0 0 834,438 682,859
Investment Return and
Miscellaneous 245908 242.750 0 0 245 908 242,750
Total Revenues $ 17.693.138 § 17.550.161 $ 592581 $§ 602,836 $ 18285719 § 18.152.997
Expenses
General Government $ 1,859,071 $ 1,101,707 $ 0 0 § 1,859,071 § 1,101,707
Public Safety 1,509,401 1,447,194 0 0 1,509,401 1,447,194
Public Works 1,777,830 2,101,551 0 0 1,777,830 2,101,551
Health and Welfare 6,513 7,751 6,513 7,751
Recreation and Culture 416,952 442,727 0 ] 416,952 442,727
Education 10,024,430 9,822,660 0 0 10,024,430 9,822,660
County Tax and Overlay 550,515 327,762 0 0 550,515 527,762
Sewer Fund Operations 0 482,082 496,382 482,082 496,382
Other 341,580 331.529 0 0 341.580 331,529
Total Expenses 5 16486292 § 15,782.881 $ 482082 § 496382 $ 16968.374 $ 16.279.263
Excess (Deficiency)
Before Transfers $ 1206846 § 1,767,280 $ 110,499 §$ 106454 $ 1,317,345 § 1,873,734
Transfers $ (157,509 § 0 § 157509 % 0 § 0 $ 0
Inerease (Decrease) In Net
Position $ 1049337 § 1,767,280 § 268,008 $ 106454 $ 1,317,345 $ 1,873,734

Net Position, July 1

Net Position, June 30

$12,893.485 § 11,126,205 $ 1.773.097

$ 1,666,643

$ 14,666,582

$ 12,792,848

$ 13942822 § 12,893,485 $§ 2,041,105

1,773.09

983,927

14,666,582



Management Discussion & Analysis Page 5

ANALYSIS OF OVERALL FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

As noted above, the Statement of Activities indicates that the total revenues exceeded total expenses by
$1,317,345 resulting in an even stronger overall financial position for the year ended June 30, 2020. The
Statement of Activities at Exhibit IT provides greater detail of the sources of this excess. Of this increase in
net position, after transfers governmental activities produced $1,049,337 while business-type activities
yielded $268,008. The primary drivers behind the excess in governmental activities were positive operating
results in both the general fund as well as the Route 236 TIF fund, as noted in the following section.

ANALYSIS OF SIGNIFICANT INDIVIDUAL FUND BALANCES, TRANSACTIONS AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES .

General Fund - Revenues were in excess of expenditures and other financing sources by $614,099
thereby increasing the fund balance to $4,260,176; this increase is slightly below the prior year’s
general fund balance increase of $645,616. While the amount of fund balance that any town needs
to maintain is debatable, this amount is reasonable by most standards, as it corresponds to
approximately 25% of total general fund expenditures and transfers for the year.

Route 236 TIF District — This TIF District’s fund balance grew by $700,098 as the result of the
annual appropriation of the relevant incremental tax revenues, coupled with investment income and
gains, net of expenses. The balance of $5,394,280 at June 30, 2020 is available for expenditure in
accordance with the terms of the corresponding development program.

Sewer Bond Fund — This is a relatively new fund created two years ago to account for the receipt
and expenditures of the proceeds from the $1,700,000 Clean Water State Revolving Fund bond
issued by Maine Municipal Bond Bank to be used for pump station repairs and upgrades. During
the year ended June 30, 2020, the Town drew the final $81,826 from this financing source as work
on this project reached substantial completion, with this final draw and all related balances and
activities relating to this project being transferred to the Sewer Enterprise Fund.

All Other Governmental Funds — The increase of $67,439 in combined fund balances for this
category is primarily due to budgeted transfers into various capital projects and special revenue
funds, partly offset by various capital outlays and other expenditures from those funds. Listings of
the ending balances of the various funds included in this column are provided in Note 9,

GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

As presented in Exhibit VII, general fund budgeted expenditures and transfers amounted to
$17,081,869. The town department budgets were under spent by $792,897 and revenues were
below budgeted estimates by $178,798. Combined, these factors resulted in a favorable
performance against budget in the amount of $614,099.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT AND OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Capital Assets

Additions to Capital Assets totaled $438,202 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2020. Included here
were a new backhoe, two new trucks, plow gear, communications equipment, and final construction
costs for the sewer pump station project. Total depreciation incurred in 2020 amounted to $446,723
for governmental and business-type activities combined.



Management Discussion & Analysis Page 6

CAPITAL ASSEFS AND DEBT AND OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Debt and Other Long-Term Liabilities

The Town’s total debt in the form of bonds and leases payable increased by $69,440 to $1,815,226.
This net increase resulted from the final draw from the sewer bond discussed earlier coupled with a
new capital lease obtained for the backhoe noted above, less regular payments against principal
made during the year. Accrued compensation payable amounted to $262,115 at June 30, 2020, a
$52,462 increase from prior year. The Town’s net pension liability grew during the year by
$54,189, to a balance of $921,533 at year-end, while the Town’s net OPEB liability grew by
$33,855 to $197,503.

CURRENTLY KNOWN FACTS, DECISIONS, OR CONDITIONS

As of the date of this report, the COVID-19 global pandemic continues to impact all areas of the
wotld, including York County in Maine. The ultimate effect of this health crisis on the Town’s
financial condition is not knowable at this time.

That said, the Town continues to benefit from a stable financial condition and is proud of a number
of initiatives recently completed or currently underway, including major progress to-date within our
Route 236 TIF project, and is well-positioned to continue to serve our citizens effectively and
efficiently.



EXHIBIT I

TOWN OF ELIOT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020
Primarv Government
Business -
Governmental Type
Activities Activities Total(a)

Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 6,594,960 §$ 0 % 6,594,960
[nvestments 5,631,677 0 5,631,677
Taxes Receivable 236,249 0 236,249
Tax Liens Receivable 102,736 0 102,736
Accounts Receivable 58,371 646,027 246,336
Capital Assets, Net of Accumulated Depreciation 3.833,783 2,945,918 6,779,701
Total Assets $ 16,457,776 3.591.945 $19.591.659
Deferred Outflows of Resources
Related to Pension Benefits $ 351,948 0§ 351,948
Related to OPEB 39,139 0 39.139
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources $  391.087 0 $ 391,087
Liabilities
Accounts Payable $ 867,201 0% 409,139
Accrued Expenses 85,381 6,024 91,405
Non Current Liabilities

Bonds and Leases Due Within One Year 51,316 78,758 130,074

Bonds and Leases Due in More Than One Year 219,094 1,466,058 1,685,152

Compensated Absences 262,115 0 262,115

Net Pension Liability 921,533 0 921,533

OPEB Liability 197.503 0 197,503
Total Liabilities $ 2.604.143 1,550.840 § 3,696,921
Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to Pension Benefits $ 265348 0§ 265348
Prepaid Property Taxes 19,280 0 19,280
Related to OPEB 17,270 0 17.270
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources $ 301,898 0 $ 301.898
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 3563,373 1,401,102 $ 4,964,475
Restricted

Tax Increment Financing 5,440,520 0 5,440,520

Permanent Funds 44,552 0 44,552
Unrestricted 4,894,377 640,003 5,534,380
Total Net Position $13,942822 § 2,041,105 $15.983.927

{a) Net of elimination of intra-government receivables and payables of $458,062.

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



TOWN OF ELIOT

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Program
Revenues

EXHIBIT I

Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in

Net Assets

Primary Government

Business -
Charges for Governmental Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions Activities Activities Total
Primary Government
Governmental Activities
General Government $ 1,859,071 § 134,433 $(1,724,638) h 0 $(1,724,638)
Public Safoty 1,509,401 17,299 (1,492,102) 0 (1,492,102)
Public Works 1,777,830 08,235 (1,644,315) 0 (1,644,315)
Health and Welfare 6,513 0 {6,513) 0 (6,513)
Recreation and Culture 416,952 262,793 0 (154,159) 0 (154,159)
Education 10,024,430 ] 0 (10,024,430) 0 (10,024,430)
County Tax and Overlay 550,515 0 0 (550,515) 0 (550,515)
Interest Expense and Other 6,781 0 0 (6,781) 0 {6,781)
Depreciation — Unallocated 334,799 0 0 (334.79%) 0 (334,799)
Total Government Activities $16,486292 $ 512.760 $(15.938252y & 0 $(15938.252)
Business - Type Activities
Sewer Fund $ 482082 § 592,581 $ 0 $ 110.499 $ 110,499
Total Primary Government $16.968.374 $ 1,105,341 $(15.938252)y § 110499 $(15.827.753)
General Revenues
Property and Other Taxes $ 16,064,752 $ 0 % 16,064,752
Grants and Contributions Not Restricted to
Special Programs 834,438 0 834,438
Investment Income, Gains and Losses 241,561 0 241,561
Miscellaneous Income 4,347 0 4347
Total General Revenues $ 17.145.098 $ 0 $17.145.098
Changes in Net Position Before Transfers $ 1,206,846 $ 110,499 § 1,317,345
Transfers Between Activities (157,509 157,509 0
Changes in Net Position $ 1,049,337 % 268,008 $ 1,317,345
Net Position — July 1, 2019 $ 12,893 485 $1.773.097  $ 14,666,582
Net Position — June 30, 2020 13,942,822 41,105  § 15,983,927

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Investments

Taxes Receivable

Tax Liens Receivable
Accounts Receivable

Due from Other Funds

Total Assets
Deferred Outflows of Resources

Total Assets and Deferred
QOutflows of Resources

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of
Resources, and Fund Balance
Liabilities

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

Due to Other Funds

Total Liabilities

Deferred Inflows of Resources
Unavailable Property Taxes

Fund Balance
Restricted
Tax Increment Financing
Permanent Funds -
Committed
Capital Projects
Special Revenues
Assigned
Permanent Funds
General Fund
Unassigned
Capital Projects Fund Deficits
Special Revenue Fund Deficits
General Fund

Total Fund Balance

Total Liahilities, Deferred Inflows

of Resources, and Fund Balance

EXHIBIT 111

TOWN OF EL1OT
BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020
QOther Total
General Route 236 Sewer Governmental Governmental
Fund TIFE District Bond Fund Funds Funds
$ 5879406 § 389,625 § 167,984 § 157945 §$ 6,594,960
0 4,034,680 0 1,596,997 5,631,677
236,249 0 0 0 236,249
102,736 0 0 0 102,736
58,371 0 0 0 58,371
13,451 969,975 0 108,129 1,091,555

$ 6290213 $ 5394280 § 167,984 § 1,863,071 § 13,715,548

0 0 0 0 0

8 6290213 § 5394280 & 167,984 § 1863071 § 13715548

$ 327313 § 0 3 81,826 % 0 $ 409,139
82,912 0 0 0 82,912
1,378,232 0 86,158 85.227 1,549,617

$ 1788457 § 0 $ 167,984 $ 85227 $  2.041.668
$ 241,580 §$ 0 $ 0 $ 0 $ 241580
$ 0 $ 5394280 $ 0 $ 46240 § 5,440,520
0 0 0 44,552 44,552

0 0 0 1,093,214 1,093,214

0 0 0 613,489 613,489

0 0 0 2,721 2,721

136,123 0 0 0 136,123

0 0 0 (17,391) (17,391)

0 0 0 (4,981) (4,981)

4,124,053 0 0 0 4,124,053

$ 4260176 $ 5394280 $ 0§ 1777844 $ 11.432.300

b 6,290213 $ 5394280 $ 167984 § . 1.863.071 $ 13,715,548

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



EXHIBIT IV

TOWN OF ELIOT
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET TO
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2020

Total Fund Balance — Total Governmental Funds $ 11,432,300

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net
Position are Different Because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not
current financial resources and therefore are not
reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. 3,833,783

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require current
financial resources and therefore interest payable is not reported
as a liability in Governmental Funds Balance Sheet. (2,469)

Unavailable property tax revenues are not available to pay for
Current financial expenditures and, therefore, are deferred inflows
of resources. 222,300

Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period
and therefore they are not reported in the Governmental Funds
Balance Sheet:

Due in One Year $ 51,316
Due in More Than One Year 219,094
Net Pension Liability 921,533
OPEB Liability 197,503
Accrued Compensated Absence Payable 262,115 (1,651,561)

Deferred Inflows and Deferred Outflows Relating to Pension and OPEB
Benefits Are Not Reported in the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet.

108.469

Net Position of Governmental Activities $§ 13,942 822

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



EXHIBIT V

TOWN OF ELIOT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Other Total
General Route 236 TIF Sewer Governmental Governmental
Fund District Bond Fund Funds Funds

Revenues
Property Taxes $ 13,785,631 % 695,906 § 0 3 0 § 14,481,537
Excise Taxes 1,623,215 0 0 0 1,623,215
Intergovernmental Revenue 869,718 0 0 0 869,718
Charges for Services 512,760 0 0 0 512,760
Investment Income, Gains (Losses) 0 168,927 0 72,634 241,561
Miscellaneous 4,347 0 0 Q 4347
Total Revenues $ 16,795.671 §$ 864,833 § 0 § 72,634 § 17,733,138
Expenditures
Current

General Government $ 1,555,630 § 139,735 § 0 $ 28,195 § 1,723,560

Public Safety 1,509,401 0 0 0 1,509,401

Public Works 1,376,885 0 0 0 1,376,885

Health and Sanitation 6,513 0 0 0 6,513

Recreation and Culture 416,952 4] 0 0 416,952

Education 10,024,430 0 0 0 10,024,430

County Tax and Overlay 550,515 0 0 ] 550,515

Debt Service 45,679 0 0 0 45,679
Capital Outlay 802,967 0 0 0 802,967
Total Expenditures $ 16288972 § 139735 § 0 3 28,195 § 16456902
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under} Expenditures $ 506,699 3 725098 $ 0 3 44439 § 1,276,236
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Borrowing $ 105,400 § 0 % 0 $ 0 3 105,400
Transfers Tn (Out) 2,000 (25.000) 0 23,000 0
Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) $ 107400 8§ (25.000) $ g 8 23000 % 105.400
Net Change in Fund Balance $ 614,099 § 700,008 § 0 3 67,439 % 1,381,636
Fund Balance — June 30, 2019 3,646,077 4.694.182 0 1.710.405 10,050,664
Fund Balance — June 30, 2020 260,176 § 5394280 § 0 3 1,777,844 § 11,432,300

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



EXHIBIT VI

TOWN OF ELIOT
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Net Change in Fund Balance — Total Governmental Funds $ 1,381,636

Amounts Reported for Governmental Activities in the Statement of Net
Position are Different Because:

Governmental Funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets

is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as

depreciation expense. This is the amount of capital assets

recorded in the current period, net of disposals of same. 402,022

Depreciation expense on capital assets is reported in the

Government-Wide Statement of Activities and changes in net

position, but they do not require the use of current financial

resources. Therefore, depreciation expense is not reported as

expenditure in governmental funds. (334,799

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds payable, notes payable,

capital leases payable) provides current financial resources to

Governmental Funds, while the repayment of long-term debt

consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position.

This amount is the net effect of these differences in the

freatment of long-term debt and related items, (65,592)

Some property tax will not be collected for several months after the
Town’s fiscal year end; they are not considered current financial resources
in the Governmental Funds, This amount is the net effect of the differences. (40,000)

Accrued interest expense on long-term debt is reported in the Government-

Wide Statement of Activities and changes in net position, but does not require

the use of current financial resources; therefore, accrued interest expense is

not reported as expenditures in Governmental Funds. Accrued compensated

absence pay expense is accounted for in a similar fashion. (53,372)

Changes in Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows and Pension and OPEB

Liabilities Relating to Implementation of GASB Statements No. 68 and 75. (83,049)

Transfer of net investment in capital assets from governmental activities

to business-type activities. (157.509)
Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities $1,049.337

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



EXHIBIT VI

TOWN OF ELIOT
GENERAL FUND
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
BUDGET AND ACTUAL
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 34, 2020

Variance
with Final
Budgeted Amounts Budget
Actual Positive
Revenues QOriginal Final Amounts (Negative)
Property Taxes $ 13,718,902 $ 13,718,902 $ 13,785,631 § 66,729
Excise Taxes 1,702,759 1,702,759 1,623,215 (79,544)
Intergovernmental Revenue 809,592 809,592 869,718 60,126
Charges for Services 734,216 734,216 512,760 (221,456)
Miscellaneous 9,000 9,000 4,347 {4,653)
Total Revenues $ 16974469 $ 16.974.469 $ 16,795.671 $_ (178.798)
Expenditures
Current
General Government $ 1,465,587 § 1,465,587 $ 1,555,630 $ (90,043)
Public Safety 1,589,343 1,589,343 1,509,401 79,942
Public Works 1,816,136 1,816,136 1,376,885 439,251
Health and Sanitation 20,000 20,000 6,513 13,487
Recreation and Culture 479,943 479,943 416,952 62,991
Education 10,010,904 10,010,904 10,024,430 (13,526)
County Tax 614,217 614,217 550,515 63,702
Debt Service 118,250 62,489 45,679 16,810
Capital Outlay 960,600 1,023,250 802.967 220.283
Total Expenditures $ 17074980 § 17.081.869 $ 16,288.972 $  792.897
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue Over (Under)
Expenditures §_(100511) §  (107.400) $§  506.699 $ 614,099
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Proceeds from Borrowing $ 0 3 105,400 % 105,400 § 0
Transfers In (Out) 100,511 2,000 2,000 0
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) $ 100511 $ 107400 $ 107400 $ 0
Net Change in Fund Balances b 0 % 0 $ 614099 § 614,099
Fund Balance — July 1, 2019 3.646.077 3,646,077 3,646,077 0
Fund Balance — June 30, 2029 $ 3646077 $_3.646,077 4,260,176 § 614,099

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



EXHIBIT VIII

TOWN OF ELIOT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2020
Sewer Fund

Assets
Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 0

Accounts Receivable 187,965

Due From Other Funds 458,062
Total Current Assets $ 646,027
Noncurrent Assets

Capital Assets (Net of Accumulated Depreciation) $ 2945918
Total Assets $ 3,591,945
Liabilities
Current Liabilities

Accrued Expenses $ 6,024

Bonds Payable, Current Portion

78,758

Total Current Liabilities $ 84782
Noncurrent Liabilities

Bonds Payable, Net of Current Portion $ 1.466.058
Total Liabilities $ 1,550,840
Net Position
Net Investment in Capital Assets $ 1,401,102
Unrestricted 640,003
Total Net Position $ 2,041,105

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



EXHIBIT IX

TOWN OF ELIOT
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020

Sewer Fund

Operating Revenues
Charges for Sales and Services

User Fees $ 592,581

Miscellaneous 0
Total Operating Revenues $ 592581
Operating Expenses
Public Works and Sanitation $ 349,811
Depreciation 111.924
Total Operating Expenses $ 461,735
Operating Income (Loss) $ 130,846
Non-Operating Revenues (Expenses)
Interest Expense $ (20347
Capital Contributions $ 157.509
Change in Net Position $ 268,008
Net Position — July 1, 2019 1,773.097
Net Position — June 30, 2020 $ 2,041,105

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



EXHIBIT X

TOWN OF ELIOT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020
Sewer Fund
Cash Flows from Operating Activities
Receipts from Customers $ 591,042
Payments to Suppliers (349.811)
Net Cash Provided by (Used) in Operating Activities $ 241.231
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities
Interfund Payments $ (188.366)

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Additional Draw on Bond Payable $ 81,826
Principal Paid on Bond Payable (77,978)
Interest Paid on Bond Payable (20,533)
Purchase of Capital Assets (36.180)
Net Cash from Capital and Related Financing Activities $ (52.865)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash $ 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents— July 1, 2019 0
Cash and Cash Equivalents — June 30, 2020 $ 0
Reconciliation of Operating Income to Net Cash Provided by

{Used) in Operating Activities:

Operating Income (Loss) $ 130,846
Adjustments to Reconcile Operating Income to Net Cash Provided

by (Used) in Operating Activities

Depreciation Expense $ 111,924
(Increase) Decrease in Accounts Receivable (1.539
Total Adjustments $ 110,385
Net Cash Provided by (Used) in Operating Activities $ 241,231

The Notes to the Financial Statements are an Integral Part of This Statement.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. — General Statement

The Town of Eliot, Maine was incorporated in 1810 under the laws of the State of Maine and currently
operates under a Town Manager-Selectmen Form of Government. The accompanying financial
statements present the government and any component units, entities for which the government may be
considered financially accountable, fiscally dependent or because of the nature and significance of its
relationship with the Town of Eliot. The Town does not currently bear any such relationships with any
other entities which would require inclusion as component units in the accompanying financial
statements,

The accounting and reporting policies of the Town relating to the funds and account groups included in
the accompanying financial statements conform to generally accepted accounting principles as
applicable to state and local governments. Generally accepted accounting principles for local
governments include those principles prescribed by the Governinental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB), the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in the publication entitled Audits of
State and Local Governmental Units and by the Financial Accounting Standards Board (when
applicable). The more significant accounting policies of the Town are described below.

In preparing its financial statements, the Town follows the provisions of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB)’s Statement No. 34, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments. Certain of the key
aspects of this guidance include:

The financial statements include:

» A Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section providing an analysis of the
Town’s overall financial position and results of operations.

» Financial statements prepared using full accrual accounting for all of the Town’s
activities.

> A focus within the fund financial statements on major funds.

These and other requirements are reflected in the accompanying financial statements
including these notes to the financial statements.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B. — Financial Reporting Entity

The Town's combined financial statements include the accounts of all Town of Eliot operations, The
criteria for including organizations as component units within the Town's reporting entity, as set forth
in Section 2100 of GASB's Codification of Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting
Standards, include whether:

The organization is legally separate (can sue and be sued in their own name).

The Town holds the corporate powers of the organization,

The Town appoints a voting majority of the organization's board.

The Town is able to impose its will on the organization.

The organization has the potential to impose a financial benefit/burden on the Town.
There is fiscal dependency by the organization on the Town.

YVVVVY

Based on the aforementioned criteria, the Town of Eliot has no component units that are not included
in this report.

C. - Financial Statements — Government-Wide Statements

The Town’s financial statements include both government-wide (reporting the Town as a whole)
and fund financial statements (reporting the Town’s major funds). Both the government-wide and
fund financial statements categorize primary activities as either governmental or business-type.

In the government-wide Statement of Net Position, both the governmental and business-type
activities columns (a) are presented on a consolidated basis by column (b) and are reported on a full
accrual, economic resource basis, which recognizes all long-term assets and receivables as well as
long-term debt and obligations. The Town’s net position are reported in three parts — Net
investment in capital assets; restricted net position; and unrestricted net position. The Town first
utilizes restricted resources to finance qualifying activities.

The government-wide Statement of Activities reports both the gross and net cost of each of the
Town’s functions. The functions are also supported by general government revenues (property
taxes, certain intergovernmental revenues, charges for services, etc). The Statement of Activities
reduces gross expenses (including depreciation) by related program revenues, operating and capital
grants. Program revenues must be directly associated with the function or a business-type activity.
Operating grants include operating-specific and discretionary (whether operating or capital) grants
while the capital grants column reflects capital-specific grants.

The net costs (by function) are normally covered by general revenue (property taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, interest income, etc).



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. — Financial Statements — Fund Financial Statements

‘The financial transactions of the Town are reported in individual funds in the fund financial
statements. Each fund is accounted for by providing a separate set of self-balancing accounts that
comprises its assets, liabilities, reserves, fund equity, revenues and expenditures/expenses. The
various funds are reported by generic classification within the financial statements. The following
fund types are used by the Town.

Governmental Funds

The focus of the governmental funds’ measurement (in the fund statements) is upon
determination of financial position and changes in financial position (sources, uses, and
balances of financial resources) rather than upon net income. The following is a description of
the governmental funds of the Town:

General Fund is the general operating fund of the Town. It is used to account for all
financial resources except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific tevenue sources that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. The Town’s Route 236 TIF
Fund is considered a major special revenue fund,

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources to be used for the
acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by business-
type/proprietary funds)., The Town’s Sewer Bond Fund is considered a major capital
projects fund.

Permanent Funds are used to report resources that are legally restricted to the extent that
only earnings, and not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting
government’s programs, that is, for the benefit of the government or its citizenry. A
permanent fund would be used, for example, to account for the perpetual care endowment of
a municipal cemetery.

Proprietary Funds

The focus of proprietary fund measurement is upon determination of operating income,
changes in net position, financial position, and cash flows. The generally accepted
accounting principles applicable are those similar to businesses in the private sector. The
following is a description of the proprietary funds of the Town of Eliot:



TOWN OF ELI1OT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

D. — Financial Statements — Fund Financial Statements (Continued)
Proprietary Funds (Continued)

Enterprise Funds are required to be used to account for operations for which a fee is
charged to external users for goods or services and the activity (a) is financed with debt that
is solely secured by a pledge of the net revenues, (b) has a third party requirement that the
cost of providing services, including capital costs, be recovered with fees and charges or (¢)
establishes fees and charges based on a pricing policy designed to recover similar costs.
The Sewer Fund is considered a major fund, and operates in a manner similar to private
business enterprises. The intent is that costs for sewer services provided to the general
public on a continuing basis be recovered or financed primarily through charges to users.

The emphasis in fund financial statements is on the major funds in either the governmental or
business-type activities categories. Non-major funds by category are summarized into a single
column. GASB No. 34 sets forth minimum criteria (percentage of the assets, liabilities, revenues or
expenditures/expenses of either fund category or the governmental and enterprise combined) for the
determination of major funds. The non-major funds are combined in a column in the fund financial
statements,

E. — Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting

Measurement focus refers to what is being measured; basis of accounting refers to when revenues
and expenditures are recognized in the accounts and reported in the financial statements. Basis of
accounting relates to the timing of the measurement made, regardless of the measurement focus
applied.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

E. — Measurement Focus/Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The government-wide statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus and
the accrual basis of accounting. The economic resources measurement focus means all assets and
liabilities (whether current or non-current) are included on the statement of net position and the
operating statements present increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in net total assets,
Under the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when earned. Expenses are
recognized at the time the Hability is incurred.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and are accounted for using the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under
the modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible to accrual; i.e.,
when they become both measurable and available, “Measurable” means the amount of the
transaction can be determined and “available” means collectible within the current period or soon
enough thereafter to be used to pay liabilities of the current period.

A one-year availability period is used for recognition of all other Governmental fund revenues.
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are
recorded only when payment is due.

F. — Budgetary Control

Formal budgetary accounting is employed as a management contro! for the general fund of the
Town of Eliot.

The Town of Eliot's policy is to adopt an annual budget for operations. The budget is presented on the
modified accrual basis of accounting which is consistent with generally accepted accounting principles.

The following procedures are followed in establishing budgetary data reflected in the financial
statements:

» Early in the second half of the last fiscal year the Town prepared a budget for this fiscal year
beginning July 1%, The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of
financing them.

» A meeting of the inhabitants of the Town of Eliot was then called for the purpose of adopting
the proposed budget after public notice of the meeting was given.

» The budget was adopted subsequent to passage by the inhabitants of the Town.

The Town does not adopt budgets for the Special Revenue Funds,



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

G. — Cash and Investments

Maine statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. agencies,
repurchase agreements and certain corporate stocks and bonds. Generally, the Town invests certain
funds in checking, savings accounts or certificates of deposit.

The Town has defined cash and cash equivalents to include cash on hand, demand deposits, short-
term investments with original maturities of three months or less. Investments are recorded at fair
market value,

H. - Capital Assets

Capital assets purchased or acquired with an original cost of $5,000 or more are reported at
historical cost or estimated historical cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of
the date received. Additions, improvements and other capital outlays that significantly extend the
useful life of an asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are
expensed as incurred. Depreciation on all assets is provided on the straight-line basis over the
following estimated useful [ives:

Buildings 20 - 50 Years
Machinery and Equipment 3 - 50 Years
Vehicles 3 -25 Years
Infrastructure 50 - 100 Years

The Town of Eliot has elected not to retroactively report their major general infrastructure assets.

I. - Compensated Absences

The Town of Eliot recognizes accumulated sick leave compensation during the period in which the
related liability is incurred. In compliance with the Town’s personnel policies, the total for accrued
compensated absence pay was $262,115 at June 30, 2020.

J. - Interfund Activity

Interfund activity is reported as loans, services provided, reimbursements or transfers. Loans are
reported as interfund receivables and payables as appropriate and are subject to elimination upon
consolidation. Services provided, deemed to be at market or near market rates, are treated as
revenues and expenditures/expenses. Reimbursements are when one fund incurs a cost, charges the
appropriate benefiting fund and reduces its related cost as a reimbursement. All other interfund
iransactions are treated as transfers. Transfers between governmental or proprietary funds are
netted as part of the reconciliation to the government-wide financial statements,

K. — Equity Classifications

Government-Wide Statements
Net position represents the differences between assets and liabilities. Equity is classified as
net position and displayed in three components:



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

K. — Equity Classifications (Continued)

Governmeni-Wide Statements (Continued)

» Net investment in capital assets — consists of capital assets including restricted capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation and reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds,
mortgages, notes, or other borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction,
or improvement of those assets.

» Restricted net position — consists of net position with constraints placed on the use either by
(1) external groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments; or (2) law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

» Unrestricted net position — all other net position that do not meet the definition of
“restricted” or “net investment in capital assets.”

Fund Statements

Governmental fund equity is classified as fund balance. In the governmental fund financial
statements, fund balances are classified as nonspendable, restricted, or unrestricted
(committed, assigned or unassigned). Restricted represents those portions of fund balance
where constraints placed on the resources are either externally imposed or imposed by law
through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Committed fund balance represents
amounts that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by
format action of the Board of Selectmen, such as an appropriation. Assigned fund balance is
constrained by the Board’s intent to be used for specific purposes by directive. See Note 10
for additional information about fund balances.

L. — Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources
The Town has implemented the following statements:

GASB No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferved Inflows of
Resources, and Net Position and GASB No. 63, liems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities.

GASB 63 and GASB 65 amended GASB 34 to incorporate deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources into the financial reporting model. These terms are defined as
follows, are not considered assets or liabilities, and are thus categorized separately within the
financial statements.

Deferred Outflows of Resources - a consumption of net position by the government that is
applicable to a future reporting period. It has a positive effect on net position, similar to assets.

Deferred Inflows of Resources - an acquisition of net position by the government that is applicable
to a future reporting period. It has a negative effect on net position, similar to liabilities.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 1 —- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M. — Use of Estimates

Preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires the use of management’s
estimates and assumptions. Those estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and
expenses. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

N. — Accounts Receivable

Accounts Receivable at June 30, 2020, primarily consist of miscellaneous intergovernmental
teceivables as well as enterprise fund charges due from customers and residents, Management
believes all such amounts are fully collectible, and thus no altowance for uncollectible balances has
been recorded.

NOTE 2 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

Maine statutes authorize the Town to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S. Agencies,
repurchase agreements and certain corporate stocks and bonds. Generally, the Town invests such
excess funds in checking accounts, savings accounts, certificates of deposit or repurchase
agreements.

A. Deposits

The Town does not have a policy covering custodial credit risks fot its deposits, and from time to time
its deposits may exceed the limits of FDIC insurance coupled with collateralization agreements.
However, the Town has not experienced any losses from any such uninsured and uncollateralized
amounts and does not believe it is exposed in a material fashion to such risk at the present time. At
June 30, 2020, the Town held bank deposits in excess of FDIC coverage but collateralized by securities
held by its financial institution amounting to $6,083,984 and uncollateralized cash equivalents above
the $500,000 limit for Securities Investor Protection Corporation amounting to $47,570.

B. Investments
At June 30, 2020, the Town’s investment balances were as follows:

Less Than More Than

Fair Value One Year 1-5 Years S Years
Mutual Funds $ 5,631,677 $ 5.631.,677 § 0 $ 0
Total Investments $ 5,631,677 §$5.631,677 $ 0 % 0

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by
generally accepted accounting principles, based on inputs used in making such measurements.
Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs are significant
other observable inputs; Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs. All of the Town’s
investments above are measured at fair value on a recurring basis using Level 1 inputs.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 3 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of
assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial
insurance. There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverages during the fiscal year
and no significant settlements that exceeded insurance coverage.

NOTE 4 - PROPERTY TAXES

The Town is responsible for assessing, collecting and distributing property taxes in accordance with
enabling state legislation. The Town of Eliot’s property tax is levied on the assessed value listed as of
the prior April 1* for all taxable real and personal property located in the Town. Assessed values are
periodically established by the Assessor at 100% of assumed market value. The assessed value for the
list of April 1, 2019, upon which the levy for the year ended June 30, 2020, was based, amounted to
$1,005,619,100. This assessed value was 100% of the estimated market value and 97.17% of the 2020
State valuation of $1,034,950,000. The Town is permitted by the faws of the State of Maine to levy
taxes up to 105% of its net budgeted expenditures for the related fiscal petiod. The amount raised in
excess of 100% is referred to as overlay and amounted to $98,932 for the year ended June 30, 2020.

In the fund financial statements, property taxes are recognized in compliance with NCGA
Interpretation-3 Revenue Recognition — Property Taxes which states that such revenue is recorded
when it becomes measurable and available, Available means due, or past due and receivable within the
current period and collected no longer than 60 days after the close of the current period.

Tax liens are placed on real property within twelve months following the tax commitment date if
taxes are delinquent. The Town has the authority to foreclose on property eighteen months after the
filing of the lien if tax liens and associated costs remain unpaid.

The following summarizes the 2019-2020 levy:

Assessed Value $ 1,005,619,100
Less: BETE (4,886,900)
Less: Homestead Exemption (22,650,000)
Net Assessed Value $ 978,082,200
Tax Rate (Per $1,000) 14,70
Commitment $ 14,377,808
Supplemental Taxes Assessed 25,888
Sub-Total $ 14,403,696
Less: Abatements (35,231)
Collections (14.134,174)
Receivable at Year End $ 234,291
Collection Rate 98.1%

Property taxes on real and personal property accounts were due on November 14, 2019 and
May 14, 2020. Interest was charged at 7% on delinquent accounts after those dates.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2020, was as follows:

Beginning Transfers/ Transfers/ Ending
Balance Additions/  Retirements/ Balance
Governmental Activities July 1 Completions  Adjustments June 30
Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land and Construction in Progress $1.889.109 §$ 0 $1.704687 $ 184.422
Capital Assets, Being Depreciated
Buildings and Improvements $4274,177 $ 10,410 $ 0 $47284,587
Furniture and Fixtures 50,543 0 0 50,543
Machinery and Equipment 1,463,040 161,125 0 1,624,165
Vehicles 2,110,414 230,487 0 2,346,901
Infrastructure 2,406,700 0 0 2,406,700
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated $10,304,874  § 402,022 $ ¢ $10,706,896
Less Accumulated Depreciation $6,722,736 § 334799 § 0 $7.057,535
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net $ 3,582,138 § 67223 § 0 $3.649.361

Governmental Activities Capital Assets,

Net $5471,247 §_ 67,223  § 1,704,687 3,8 83
Business-Type Activities

Capital Assets, Being Depreciated

Infrastructure $3.873.456 §1.740.867 b 0 $5614323
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated $3,873,456  $1,740,867 $ 0 $5614,323
Less Accumulated Depreciation $2,556.481 § 111924 3§ ¢ $2,668.405
Total Capital Assets, Being Depreciated, Net  $1,316.975 $1.628943  § 0 $2945918
Business-Type Activities, Net $1,316975 $1,628943 § 0  $2945918

Depreciation expense has not been charged as a direct expense, except with respect to business-type
activities,

NOTE 6 — CONTINGENCIES

With regard to pending legal claims or any unasserted claims, it is not feasible at this time to predict
or determine their outcome. Management believes, however, that settlement amounts, if any, will
not have a material adverse effect on the Town’s financial position. The Town participates in
various infergovernmental grant programs which may be subject to future program compliance
audits by the grantors or their representatives. Accordingly, the Town’s compliance with applicable
grant requirements may be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of any liabilities
arising from the disallowance of expenditures or ineligibility of grant revenues cannot be determined
at this time.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 7 — LLONG-TERM LIABILITIES
At June 30, 2020, long term debt consisted of the following individual direct-placement issues:

Governmental
Activities
Bond Payable - Maine Municipal Bond Bank
2019 General Obligation Bond — Face amount of $150,661;
repayable in semi-annual and annual installments amounting to $16,758
per year including interest at coupon rates ranging from 1.82% to 2.39%;
due in full November 1, 2029 $ 150,661

Capital Lease Payable - PACCAR Financial

Capital lease issued to finance the acquisition of a public works

truck with original cost of $127,500 and accumulated depreciation

at June 30, 2020 of $16,247; amount financed of $90,275, repayable

in annual installments of $28,998, due in full February 23, 2023. 37,051

Capital Lease Payable — Caterpillar Financial

Capital lease issued to finance the acquisition of a public works
backhoe with original cost of $105,400 and accumulated depreciation
at June 30, 2020 of $3,513; repayable in annual installments of
$22,702, due in full February 18, 2024.

82,698

Total Long-Term Debt, Governmental Activities $ 270410
Business-Type
Activities
Bond Payable - Maine Municipal Bond Bank
2017 General Obligation Bond — Face amount of $1,700,000
drawable in installments to finance improvements to certain
sewer pump stations, repayable in annual installments of principal
in amounts ranging from $77,206 to $93,273 plus interest at 1%,
due in full October 1, 2037. $ 1,544.816
Changes in Long-Term Liabilities
Transactions for the year ended June 30, 2020, are summarized as follows:
Balance Issues or Payments or Balance Due Within
Governmental Activities July 1 Additions Reductions June 30 One Year
General Obligation Bonds $ 1,691,629 § 0 $1,540968 $ 150,661 $ 13,763
Capital Lease Payable 54,157 105,400 39,808 . 119,749 37,553
Net Pension Obligation 867,344 54,189 0 921,533 0
OPEB Liability 163,648 33,855 0 197,503 0
Accrued Compensated Absences 209,653 52462 0 262,115 0
Total $2986431 $ 245906 $ 1,580,776 $ 1,651,561 51,316

Business-Type Activities

General Obligation Bonds b 0 $1.622794 §__ 77,978 $ 1544816 $ 78,758



TOWN OF ELIOT

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020
NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM DEBT (CONTINUED)

Capital Leases

The future minimum lease obligations and the net present value of these minimum lease payments as of

June 30, 2020, were as follows:

Year Ending June 30
2021

2022

2023

2024

Net Minimum Payments

Less: Interest

Present Value of Minimum Payments

Annual Requirements to Retire Bonded Debt

The annual aggregate maturities for bonded debt for the years subsequent to June 30, 2020, are as follows:

Governmental Activities

Amount
$ 42,750

42,750

22,702
22702
$ 130,904
— (11.155)
$ 119,749

Business-Type Activities

Year Ending June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total

2021 $ 13,763 § 2,995 % 78,758 § 19,745 § 115,261
2022 14,018 2,740 79,545 18,953 115,256
2023 14,283 2,475 80,341 18,154 115,253
2024 14,560 2,198 81,145 17,346 115,249
2025 14,852 1,906 81,955 16,530 115,243
2026/30 79,185 4,605 422,238 70,127 576,155
2031/35 0 0 443,775 48,476 492251
2036/40 0 0 277,059 18,236 295,295
Total $ 150,661 §. 16919 $ 1544816 $ 227,567 § 1,939,963

Per state statute, total outstanding long-term debt during a year can be no greater than 7.5%, with certain
exceptions, of the state valuation of taxable property as of the beginning of the fiscal year. As of June 30,
2020, the amount of outstanding long-term debt was equal to 0.

NOTE 8 —~ INTERFUND ACTIVITY

Interfund balances at June 30, 2020 consisted of the following:

Due To

Route 236 TIF Fund

General Fund

Sewer Enterprise Fund

Non-Major Special Revenue Funds
Total

Due From

General Fund

Sewer Bond Fund

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds
Non-Major Permanent Funds
Total

18% of such property valuation.

$ 969,975
13,451
458,062

_ 108,129

1,549,617

$ 1,378,232
86,158
81,861

3,366

9,617



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 8 — INTERFUND ACTIVITY (CONTINUED)

These balances resulted from the time lag between the dates that (1) interfund goods and services are
provided or reimbursable expenditures occur, (2) transactions are recorded in the accounting system, and
(3) payments between funds are made.

Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2020, consisted of the following:

Transfer To

General Fund $ 2,000
Non-Major Special Revenue Funds 33.000
Total $ 35,000
Transfer From

Route 236 TIF Fund $ 25,000
Non-Major Capital Projects Funds 10,000
Total $ 35,000

Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them to
the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, and (2) use unrestricted revenues collected in the
general fund to finance various programs accounted for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations,

Additionally, certain intragovernmental capital contributions were made to the Sewer Enterprise Fund and
the associated business-type activities, as described more fully in Note 16.

NOTE 9 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES

Previously, the Town implemented GASB Statement 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions, GASB Statement 54 clarifies the existing governmental fund type definitions and
provides clearer fund balance categories and classifications. The hierarchical fund balance classification is
based primarily upon the extent to which a government is bound to follow constraints on resources in
governmental funds and includes the terms: nonspendable, committed, restricted, assigned, and unassigned.

The Town’s fund balances represent: (1) Nonspendable Fund Balance, resources that cannot be spent
because of legal or contractual provisions that require they be maintained intact. (e.g. the principal of an
endowment), (2) Restricted Purposes, which include balances that are legally restricted for specific
purposes due to constraints that are externally imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or
regulations of other governments; (3) Committed Purposes, which include balances that can only be used
for specific purposes pursuant to constraints imposed by formal action of the Board of Selectmen:

(4) Assigned Purposes, which includes balances that are constrained by the government’s intent to be used
for specific purposes, but are neither restricted nor commiited, (3) Unassigned Fund Balance, net
resources in excess of what is properly categorized in one of the four categories already described. A
positive amount of unassigned fund balance will never be reported in a governmental fund other than the
general fund, because GASB Statement 54 prohibits reporting resources in another fund uniess they are at
least assigned to the purpose of that fund. However, funds other than the general fund could report a
negative amount of unassigned fund balance should the total of nonspendable, restricted and committed
fund balance exceed the total net resources of the fund.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 9 - GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

The Town of Eliot has the responsibility for committing fund balance amounts and likewise would
be required to modify or rescind those commitments, When both restricted and unrestricted
resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use restricted resources first, then
untestricted resources as they are needed. When committed, assigned, and unassigned resources are
available for use, it is the Town’s policy to use committed or assigned resources first, then
unassigned resources as they are needed.

The Town’s General Fund unassigned fund balance total of $4,124,053 represents fund balance that
has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned to
specific purposes within the General Fund. Other fund balances per Exhibit III at year-end consisted
of amounts which the Town of Eliot intends to use for the following purposes:

Restricted

Permanent Funds:
Mt. Pleasant Cemetery $ 2,559
Frost-Tufts Park 12,805
Marie Lizzie Spinney Fund 28,342
Lena Grover Fund 846

Subtotal 44,552

Route 236 TIF Fund 5,394,280

Non-Major TIF Fund — Eliot Commons 46,240

Total Restricted §.5.485,072

Commiltted (with Deficits Unassigned)

Non-Major Capital Projects and Reserves:
Road Equipment Reserve $ 497,734
Fire Truck Reserve 349,548
Town Office Capital Improvements 111,208
CSD Capital Improvements 35,518
Other 33,394
Land Bank Reserve 21,765
Fire Department Capital Improvements 23,468
Eliot Police Capital Improvements 18,156
Police Cruisers Reserve 353
VIPS Capital Reserve 2,068
Transfer Station Facility Improvements (3,064)
Public Works Garage Capital (346)
HVAC Bond Fund (5,753)
Town Facilities Reserve (6,994)
Sewer Capital Improvements Reserve (1,232)

Total

$ 1.075.823



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 9 — GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED)

Committed (with Deficits Unassigned)

Special Revenues:
Sick Leave Reserve $ 122,111
Sewer Betterment Reserve 114,385
Legal Fee Reserve 106,781
Contingency Reserve 57,578
Community Service Center Reserve 50,745
Energy Efficiency Reserve 34,566
Petroleum Products Reserve 22,291
Health Insurance Reserve 21,389
Revaluation Reserve 11,980
Transfer Station Vehicle Reserve 10,895
Town Insurance Reserve 35,274
Compensation Study Reserve 5,931
Consultant Reserve 2,775
General Assistance Reserve 1,267
Ash Reserve 79
20" Celebration Reserve 26
Street Light Reserve 4,313)
Boat Basin (668)
Other 15416

Total $ 608,508

Assigned

General Fund $ 136,123

Permanent Funds 2,721

Total $ 138,844

Unassigned

General Fund $ 4.124,053

Grand Total $11.432,300

Certain of these amounts must be earmarked to conform to State Law and comply with Federal
Regulations. Included within the assigned portion of the gencral fund are $75,000 carried
forward for purposes of a salt reserve fund, $19,000 carried forward for elections, and $42,123
in various other assigned amount,

NOTE 10 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A, - Budgetary Accounting

The Town of Eliot utilizes a formal budgetary accounting system to control revenues and
expenditures accounted for in the General Fund. This budget is established by the Board of
Selectmen and must be approved at the Annual Town Meeting.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNEK 30, 2020

NOTE 10 — STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (CONTINUED)

B. - Excess of Expenditures over Appropriations and Deficit Balances

For the year ended June 30, 2020, expenditures did not exceed appropriations, though two expense
lines were overdrawn as indicated in Exhibit VII,

Generally accepted accounting principles require disclosure of individual funds that have deficit

balances at year-end. As of June 30, 2020, seven non-major governmental funds carried deficit
balances as identified in Note 9.

NOTE 11 - TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING

The Town has established two tax increment financing (TIF) districts in accordance with Maine
statutes to finance development programs located in the Town of Eliot. The expenditures from
these development programs will be recovered in future years through an incremental tax levied
upon the districts’ captured assessed value. A portion of the incremental tax revenues will be
returned to the district to repay principal and interest on any indebtedness to fund expenditures of
the development program (including administrative costs) and for water/sewer treatment,

Route 236 Municipal Development TIF District

The Town has created a development program approved for activities such as an engineering study,
debt service on watet/sewer improvements and extensions and administrative/professional costs.
The TIF district will remain in place for a period of 30 years from adoption. The Town reserves the
right to incur indebtedness to finance, in part or in whole, the projects within the Development
program, Any projects financed through municipal bonded indebtedness must be approved in
advance by the Eliot voters.

Lliot Commons Business Development TIF District

The Town has created a development program which will return 95% of all TIF District revenue to
Sea Dog Realty, LLC as part of a Credit Enhancement Agreement, for the primary purpose of
supporting businesses at Eliot Commons and to promote its further development. In conjunction
with the TIF District and the Credit Enhancement Agreement, Eliot Commons granted the Town an
easement to provide safer access to some areas and help alleviate traffic congestion on Route 236.
For the year ended June 30, 2020 the Town abated property taxes to Sea Dog Realty, LLC in the
amount of $96,555.

NOTE 12 - OVERLAPPING DEBT

The Town’s proportionate share of York County’s debt is not recorded in the financial statements of
the Town of Eliot. At June 30, 2020, the Town’s share was 2.96% or $56,190 of the York County
outstanding debt of $1,900,000,

The Town’s proportionate share of RSU 35°s debt is not recorded in the financial statements of the
Town of Eliot. At June 30, 2019, the latest data available, the Town’s share was 42.27% or $465,039
of the RSU ouistanding debt of $1,100,164.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 13 — RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

L.

A,

Defined Benefit Pension Plan - Maine Public Employees Retirement System (MEPERS)

Funding Policy

The Town of Eliot makes available to all full time employees the option to make a one-time
irrevocable election to participate in the Maine Public Employees Retirement System
(MEPERS), Plan AC and IC, as an alternate retirement plan. The employee shall pay,
through payroll deduction(s), his/her required contribution determined by MEPERS. The
Town shall pay its required contribution determined by MEPERS. This benefit shall be
offered to eligible employees on the date of hire.

Pension Benefits

Benefit terms are established in Maine Statute. The System’s retirement programs provide
defined retirement benefits based on member’s average final compensation and service credit
earned as of retirement. Vesting (i.e. eligibility of benefits upon reaching qualification) occurs
upon the earning of 20-25 years of service credit for Town employees. Normal retirement age
of PLD members is age 60 or 65. The normal retirement age is determined by whether a
member had met certain creditable service requirements on specific dates, as established by
statute,

The monthly benefit of members who retire before normal retirement age by virtue of having
at least 25 years of service credit is reduced by a statutorily prescribed factor for each year of
age that a member is below her/his normal retirement age at retirement. The System also
provides disability and death benefits which are established by statute for State employee and
teacher members,

Upon termination of membership, members’ accumulated employee contributions are
refundable with interest, credited in accordance with statute. Withdrawal of accumulated
contributions results in forfeiture of all benefits and membership rights, The annual interest
credited to member’s accounts is set by the System’s Board of Trustees.

Member and Employer Contributions

Retirement benefits are funded by contributions from members and employers and by earnings
on investments. Disability and death benefits are funded by employer normal cost
contributions and by investment earnings. Member and employer contribution rates are each a
percentage of applicable member compensation. Member contribution rates are defined by law
or Board rule and depend on the terms of the plan under which a member is covered. Employer
contributions rates are determined through actuarial valuations. For the year ended June 30,
2020, the member contribution rate was 8.3% while the Town’s contribution rate was between
10.0% and 16.2%.

. Reverue Recognition

Employer contributions to the System are recognized as additions in the period when they
become due pursuant to formal commitments or statutory requirements, Investment income is
recoghized when earned and investment expenses are recorded when incurred.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 13 — RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

E. Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, the Town reported a net pension liability of $921,533. The net pension
liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and total pension liability used to calculate the net
pension liability was determined by actuarial valuation as of that date. The Town proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town’s long-term share of
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participating
members. At the June 30, 2019 measurement date, the Town propottion was 0.301486%,
while at the June 30, 2018 measurement date it was 0.316922%. For the fiscal year ended June
30, 2020, the Town recognized pension expense of $268,309.

At June 30, 2020, the reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pension from the following sources are as follows:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience $ 109112 % 0
Changes in Assumptions 46,669 0
Net Difference between Projected and Actual Earnings on
Pension Plan Investments 0 230,822
Changes in Proportion and Differences between Emplover
Contributions and Proportionate Share of Contributions., 4,611 34,526
Town Contributions Subsequent to the Measurement Date 191.556 0
Total $ 351948 § 265,348

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferted inflows of resources related
to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30, Amount
2021 $ 225,202
2022 (111,249
2023 (27,207)
2024 (146)

Total h 86,600



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 13 — RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

F. Actuarial Assumptions
The total pension liability in the June 30, 2019 actuarial valuation was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions applied to all period included in the measurement:

» Salary Increases and Inflation 2.75% to 9.00%
» Investment Rate of Return 6.75%
» Cost of Living Benefit Increases 1.91%

For the Town employees, the mortality rate is based on the RP2014 Total Dataset Mortality
Healthy Annuitant Mortality Table, for males and females.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments wete determined using a
building-block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates or return
(expected returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for
each major class of assets. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate
of return by weighing the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation
petcentage and by adding expected inflation.

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the
pension plan’s target asset allocation as of the June 30, 2019 valuation are summarized in the

following table:
Target Long-Term Expected
Allocation Real Rate of Return
Public Equities 30.0% 6.0%
US Government 7.5% 2.3%
Private Equity 15.0% 7.6%
Real Assets:
Real Estate 10.0% 5.2%
Infrastructure 10.0% 5.3%
Natural Resources 5.0% 5.0%
Traditional Credit 7.5% 3.0%
Alternative Credit 5.0% 4.2%
Diversifiers 10.0% 5.9%
100.0%

G. Discount Rate
The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.75%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contribution will
be made at the current contribution rate and that employer and non-employer entity
contributions will be made at contractually required rates, actuarially determined. Based on
these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
malke all projected future benefit payments to current plan members. Therefore, the long-
term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of
projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLANS (CONTINUED)

H. Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the

Discount Rate
The following presents the Town’s proportionate share of the net pension liability
calculated using the discount rate of 6.75%, as well as what the Town proportionate share of
the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1
percentage point lower (5.75%) or | percentage point higher (7.75%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease  Current Discount 1% Increase
(5.75%) Rate (6.75%) (7.75%)
Proportionate Share of the Net

Pension Liability $2,099,192 $921,533 $(180,055)

Pension Plan Financial and Actuarial Information

Additional financial information and actuarial information can be found in the Maine PERS
2019 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report available online at www.mainepers.org or by
contacting the System at (207) 512-3100.

NOTE 14 - OPEB PLAN

L

Group Health Insurance Plan — Maine Municipal Employee Health Trust (MMEHT)

Plan Description

Qualifying personnel of the Town participate in the MMEHT Group Health Plan. This plan
is a single-employer OPEB plan not administered through a trust or similar arrangement.
Accordingly, no assets are accumulated within the plan for the payment of future benefits.

Benefits

Under the Health Plan, MMEHT provides healthcare and life insurance benefits for retirees
and their dependents. Town employees over the age of 55 with at least 5 years of
continuous service are allowed to participate in the plan. Retirees that are designated in a
plan pay 100% of the single coverage premium and 100% of the family coverage premium.
At January 1, 2020 there were nineteen active employees participating in this plan, no
inactive employees, two retirees and one beneficiary entitled to and/or receiving benefits.

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB

The Town’s total Health Plan OPEB liability of $197,503 was measured as of January 1, 2020
and was determined by an actuarial valuation as that date. For the year ended June 30, 2020
the Town recognized OPEB expense of $12,821 related to the Health Plan. At June 30, 2020
the Town reported deferred inflows of resources and deferred outflows of resources related to
the Health Plan from the following sources:



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JUNE 30, 2020
NOTE 14 — OPEB PLAN (CONTINUED)
Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience $ 1,737 8§ 5,646
Changes in Assumptions 37402 11.624
Total $ 39,139 § 17,270

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related
to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

For the Year Ended June 30, Amount
2021 $ 3,280
2022 3,280
2023 3,280
2024 3,280
2025 3,280
Thereafter 5.469
Total $ 21.869

The total OPEB liability in the January 1, 2020 measurement was determined using the
following actuarial assumptions applied to all period included in the measurement:

Inflation 3.00%
Salary Increases 2.75%
Discount Rate 2.74%

Healthcare Cost Trend Rates  7.84% - 8.55% for 2020, decreasing thereafter
Retirees’ Share of Benefit Costs  100% of projected premiums

YVVYY

For the Health Plan, the mortality rate is based on 104% and 120% of the RP2014 Total
Dataset Mortality Tables for males and females, respectively.

The discount rate of 2.74% used to measure the Health Plan OPEB liability was based upon
high quality AA/Aa or higher bond yields in effect for 20 years, tax-exempt general obligation
municipal bonds using the Bond Buyer 20-Bond GO Index.

The following presents the Town’s total OPEB liability related to the Health Plan calculated
using the discount rate of 2.74%, as well as what the liability would be if it were calculated
using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower (1.74%) or I percentage point higher
(3.74%) than the current rate:



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 14 — OPEB PLAN (CONTINUED)

1% Decrease  Current Discount 1% Increase
(1.74%) Rate (2.74%) {3.74%)
Total OPEB Liability $226,263 $197,503 $173,917

The following presents the Town’s total OPEB liability related to the Health Plan calculated
using the healthcare cost trend rates noted above, as well as what the liability would be if it
were calculated using trend rates 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than
the current rates:

Health Care Cost
1% Decrease Trend Rates 1% Increase
Total OPEB Liability $172,995 $197,503 $228,176

NOTE 15- TAX ANTICIPATION NOTE

During the year ended June 30, 2020 the Town issued a tax anticipation note with a local bank. This
note provided a maximum borrowing capacity of $2,000,000 and bore interest at 2.16% per annum.
The Town did not draw any funds under this note during its term, incurred no interest on this note and
carried no outstanding balance on same as of June 30, 2020, at which point this note matured.

NOTE 16— ENTERPRISE FUND CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

As of July 1, 2019 the Town executed the transfer of certain capitalized costs and related debt and
accrued interest into its Sewer Enterprise Fund. These costs and related debt had been incurred over
the prior two fiscal years in connection with a sewer pump station improvement project. Through
June 30, 2019 these balances and transactions had been accounted for and reported as governmental
activities and, where applicable, within governmental funds. Upon the substantial completion of this
project on July 1, 2019 and the placement in service of these improvements, the following assets,
liabilities and net position were transferred into the Sewer Enterprise Fund, and are presented as
capital contributions within Exhibit IX and as intragovernmental transfers within Exhibit I1.

Construction In-Progress/Infrastructure $ 1,704,687
2017 General Obligation Bond — MMBB (1,540,968)
Accrued Interest (6.210)
Net Position Transferred $ 157,509

NOTE 17- SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW

Management has evaluated subsequent events through October 4, 2021, the date on which the
financial statements were available to be issued.

As of the date of this report, the COVID-19 pandemic continues to spread through all areas of the
world, including York County in Maine. The ultimate impact of this health crisis on the financial
condition of the Town is not knowable at this time.



TOWN OF ELIOT
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2020

NOTE 17— SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AND DATE OF MANAGEMENT’S REVIEW
{CONTINUED)

Subsequent to June 30, 2020 the Town entered into a lease-purchase agreement with a finance
company by which it has acquired the use of an excavator. The lease is for a tetm of five years
commencing on August 9, 2021 and calls for five annual lease payments of $15,083 each.



TOWN OF ELIOT

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN’S PROPORTIONATE SHARKE

6/30/20
Town’s Proportion of Net Pension
Liability 0.301486%
Town’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability $521,533
Town’s Covered Payroll $1,488,509
Town’s Proportionate Share of the
Net Pension Liability as a
Percentage of Its Covered Payroll 61.91%
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a
Percentage of the Total Pension
Liability 90.62%

OF NET PENSION LIABILITY

JUNE 30, 2020
6/30/19 6/30/18 6/30/17
0.316922% 0.313511% 0.337725%
$867,344 $1,283,630 $1,794,437
$1,488,759 $1,420,682 $1,345,080
58.26% 90.35% 133.41%
1.14% 86.43% 81.61%

EXHIBIT X1

6/30/16 6/30/15
0.308295%  0.340000%
$ 983611 § 519281
$1,199,669  $1,166,380

81.99% 44.52%

88.27% 94.10%

Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30. The data above was determined by the actuarial valuation date which
was one year prior fo the audit report date. Retroactive information is not required to be presented. A full 10 year schedule will be displayed as

it becomes available,

Notes to the RSI:
Significant Changes in Benefit Terms: None
Significant Changes in Assumptions: None

See Independent Auditors ' Report and Noles to the Financial Statements.



TOWN OF ELIOT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN’S PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS
JUNE 30, 2020

6/30/20 6/30/19 6/30/18 6/30/17 6/30/16 6/30/15

Contractually Required Contribution  $ 191,556 § 184,337 $174,177 § 159473 % 149,611 % 123,872

Actnal Contribution {191.556) (184.337) _{174.177) (159.473) {149.611) (123 .872)
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 3 0 5 0 3 ¢ 3 0 % 0 % Q0
Covered Employee Payroll § 1548873 § 1488509 $1488,759 § 1,420,682 . $1,345,080 § 1,199,669

Coniributions as a Percentage of
Covered Employee Payroll 12.37% 12.39% 11,709 11.23% 11,12% 10.33%

Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of June 30, The data above was determined for the District’s fiscal years indicated,
which difters from the reporting timeframes used in Schedule I. Retroactive information is not required to be presented, A full 10-year schedule
will be displayed as it becomes available.

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Financial Statements.



EXHIBIT XIII

TOWN OF ELIOT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN’S
NET OPEB LIABILITY - GROUP HEALTH PLAN
JUNE 30, 2020
6/30/20 6/30/19 6/30/18

Service Cost b 6,694 $ 7,555 $ 6,061
Interest 6,852 6,045 5,958
Changes of Benefit Terms (4,005) 0 0
Differences Between Expected and {6,453) 0 2,607
Actual Experience
Changes of Assumptions or Other Inputs 37,292 (14,946) 7,160
Benefit Payments (6,525} (6.274) (4.104)
Net Changes 33,855 (7,620) 17,682
Total OPEB Liability — Beginning 163.648 171,268 153,586
Total OPEB Liability - Ending 197,503 § 163,648 b 171,268
Covered-Employee Payroll $1,154,213 $1,243,918 b 1,243,918
Total OPEB Liability as a Percentage of
Coveted-Employee Payroll 17.1% 13.2% 13.8%

Amounts presented for each fiscal year were determined as of the prior January 1. The data above
was determined by the actuarial valuation date which was six-months prior to the audit report date.
Retroactive information is not required to be presented. A full 10-year schedule will be displayed as
it becomes available.

Notes to the RSI:
Significant Changes in Benefit Terms: None
Significant Changes in Assumptions: None, other than change in discount rate from 4.10% to

2.74%

Notes assets are accumulated within a trust as defined in GASB Statement No. 75 for the payment of
related benefits under this plan.

See Independent Auditors’ Report and Notes to the Financial Statements.



Staff Report
Feasibility Study Presentation
October 14, 2021, Select Board Meeting

Background: Town Meeting vote approved a Feasibility Study in June, and a contract was
awarded, and the study is progressing

Discussion:

A contract was awarded to Port City Architecture for a Feasibility Study for a New Town Office
and Municipal Services Facility. The Select Board appointed the Capital Improvement Program
(CIP) Committee to collaborate also with Consultant as the Building Committee as part of their
CIP duties.

The Interim Town Manager has been collaborating with the Consultant and CIP Committee
providing input along with staff input during the process. The CIP Committee has heen most
helpful and the consultant, Lita Semrau, will be presenting the preliminary proposal.

The town has also arranged with S.W. Cole Engineering to dig test pits and borings, working
with Port City regarding evaluating the location.

This study is the first phase of moving towards building a new town facility to meet both the
current and future needs of the town as the current facility is not sufficient now for the needs
of the community,

Fiscal Impact: Funds were allocated for the study.

Recommendation: No action is required by the Select Board at this time. Input, however, is
requested, regarding the preliminary plan that is being presented.

Carol M. Granfield, /ICMA-CM
interim Town Manager




SR B0

Staff Report
Non-union Salary Market Analysis & Staffing Study
August 26, 2021

Baclkground: The Select Board requested the Interim Town Manager to expand hours in order
to conduct a Salary Market Analysis and Staffing Study of non-union personnel.

Issue: To accept the study.

Discussion:

The Interim Town Manager has expertise in conducting Staffing Studies and Compensation and
Classification studies and had conducted extensive studies with Municipal Resources, Inc. (MR}}
throughout New England. As a result of this expertise and current knowledge of town
positions, a study was conducted to address the non-union positions to determine if salaries
and staffing is appropriate or need modification. Additionally, a Pay and Classification Plan
system was developed to address these needs.

A brief Executive Summary is attached, however, once the study is accepted it then becomes a
public document. The Select Board should then evaluate the recommendations and consider
implementation at a future date.

Fiscal Impact: Potential fiscal impact is discussed in the report for current and future
budgeting purposes.

Recommendation: The recommendation is to accept the study. Sample motion “ MOTION to
accept the Non-union Salary Market Analysis and Staffing Study conduct by Municipal
Resources, Inc,”

Carol M. Granfleld, /CAMA-CM
interim Town Manager




EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

TOWN OF ELIOQT, ME NON-UNION SALARY MARKET ANALYSIS & STAFFING STUDY

Scope

The study included conducting a market salary and position survey, review of position classifications and
establishment of a classification and salary schedule for 13 non-unlen positions. The study also included
a review of staffing needs.

Classification and Compensation

A salary market analysis was conducted comparlng the 13 position salaries with eight comparable
communities. The number of positions supervised was also reviewed. The communities surveyed
included those of comparable size along with those that are very recruitment compatitive for town
positlons. Job analysis was conducted which included evaluation of job descriptions, interviews, and
compensation levels. Salaries of positions that fall within 10% of the average ranga of comparable
communities is an indication that pay ranges are fairly comparable. It Is Important to have a Pay and .
Classification Plan which provides a pay scale with grades and ranges for an employee to progress in
salary in thelr position. Each year they become more valuable to the town based on additional
knowledge and experience gained,

A Classification and Pay Plan was developed that includes 13 Grade Levels with each level having a pay
range of 25% from minimum to maximum. This Is developad based on market, best practices, and job
evaluation. Two positions evaluated do not meet the minimum salary recommended in the Grade Level.
The cost to bring the two positions to minimum is $12, 792, Two pay plans were developed for
consideration, each having a range of 25%, Cne is an open range and the other is a step system with
2.5% between each step. To place all positions on a step system, the total cost is $20,134, The town
needs to calculate any additionat cost if It desires to acknowledge longevity, performance, or other
factors. The step system would be simifar to union contract positions which could be more equitable to
all, Progression through the range shoukd be hased on performance, A cost-of-living increase should be
added to the pay plan each year in order to keep up the plan and address inflation.

Staffing

An evaluatior: of staffing was also conducted indicates some additional positions and/reclassification of
some positions are warranted. Currently sorme positions are “wearing too many hats” and a result of this
has been a variety of issues ranging from insufficient time to effectively accomplish the work required
without errors to a high-level positions doing clerical work working too many hours and time should be
devoted to higher skilled duties. Staffing needs should be further reviewed and budgeted. Some are
warranted now to meet the needs of efficient and accurate town operations while others should be
planned for with future budgets, Fositions include a part time Finance Clerk, Human Resource
Generalist, part-time or contracted Planning Assistant, Fire Chief position to full time, reclassification of
Secretary position with expanded duties of a Coordinator and reinstitute a Police Lieutenant and have
the Police Sergeant position as a working Shift Supervisor,



Staff Report
Assessing Update — Mill Rate
October 14, 2021

Background: After taking on the Town Assessor duties, | am presenting this information to
explain the activity of the Assessing Office, to set the mill rate, and to commit taxes for 2021-2.

Issue: To establish a mill rate of 14.5 or less for the Fiscal Year funning from 2021 to 2022
resulting from the high activity of the Assessing Department to improve the quality of the
assessment data and to maintain or improve the certified ratio with the State of Maine,

Discussion: Attempting to fill the shoes of the prior assessor for the first time in over 30 years
during a rapid increase in the real estate market, | spent a lot of time driving by and analyzing
concentrated residential, commercial and industrial sales from the prior four years. To increase
the accuracy of the assessments, most residential building values were increased, select
residential land values were increased where well-supported, and, following increased business
activity on Route 236 over the prior three years, most commercial and industrial land and
building values were reconciled, resulting in increased captured assessed values in this segment
for the first time in 13 years pursuant to the Tax Increment Finance process. Property values
will continue to be reconciled per the Town’s policy to address the certified ratio of assessed
values versus market value with the State to improve the Homestead, Veteran’s and Blind
exemptions and reimbursements for personal property/business equipment.

Fiscal Impact: No material additional costs have been incurred in establishing the mill rate and
equalizing assessed values in select areas throughout the Town. The process of capturing the
increased assessed value within the Town of Eliot TIF District was done pursuant to the TIF
procedures.

Recommendation: This is recommended to establish a mill rate and overlay due to the changes
done this year. Pursuant to the Maine Revised Statutes, Title 36, Chapter 105, a motion to
accept the recommendation of a mill rate of not greater than 14.5.

Prepared by: Brent Martin, Town Assessor

Town Manager Recommendation: | Concur. Sample maotion follows:

A motion to accept the recommendation of a mill rate of not greater than 14.5.

Carol M. Granfield, /ICMA-CM
Interim Town Manager




g“*“ﬁmwrs Y Sy
TOWN OF ELIOEWNIATNE 2L |

1333 STATE ROAD, ELIOT, ME 03903
TELEPHONE: (207) 439-1813 EMAIL: towmnanager@eho me.org

O INITIAL APPLICATION FOR APPOINTMENT TO TOWN BOARDS,
COMMITTEES & COMMISSIONS

(ORE-APPOINTMENT TO TOWN BOARDS, COMMITTEES & COMMISSIONS
NAME: /\/lm/u/een C,/(uf//\
RESIDENCE: (.03 Main Street

MAILING (if different)

E-MAIL ADDRESS: MAUr s enm g @ j?ma,,-'/ .C0m_PHONE # (Home) {7Y-290 -b935

WORK # CELL# 978 - 290 - L935

Please check your choices:

) Aging-In-Place Committee

(O Board of Appeals

(O Clean Water Committee

(O Conservation Commission

(O Energy Commission

(O Harbor Committee

(O Planning Board

(O Solid Waste & Recycling Committee
(O Other

MEMBERSHIP PREFERENCE: Regular  Alternate  No Preference -
APPOINTMENT TERM: Full Term __ Partial Term__ No Preference

EDUCATION/TRAINING: A<}/

RELATED EXPERIENCE (Including other Boards/Committees and
Commissions)

PRESENT EMPLOYMENT: [1( /¢ IJ’LS{LC’({(X Senior (are. _and _ )
Seacoast WildoF Schoo |

ARE YOU 18 YEARS OR OLDER: ® YES (ONO

Rev.07/21/2017



TOWN OF ELIOT, MAINE

1333 STATE ROAD, ELIOT, ME 03903
TELEPHONE: (207) 439-1813 EMAIL: townmanager@eliotme.org

ACCORDING TO THE TOWN OF ELIOT ORDINANCE GOVERNING
MUNICIPAL BOARDS PLEASE ANWSER THE FOLLOWING
QUESTIONS.

1. Express your interest as to why you want to serve:

L Weuld_lke f> Contfribute. b my Communt~ in a
Won in which I _can use my _Exferieace. znd. intevecls
2. Give a brief reason(s) as to why the Sele¢t Bodtd should support your
appointment.
As_a_Senior careqiver Be e lash six vears | can confvm
that older adul® living jn +hev hoeies, nesahbny hoods snd 1oon
3. Give a brief summary as to how you will maintain an unbiased participation (e back)
on a regular and continuing basis throughout term.

4. Any know conflict of interest: () YES (Q NO if yes, please List

BY SUBMITTING THIS APPLICATION YOU UNDERSTAND THE
FOLLOWING:

1. This application is for consideration and does not mean you will necessarily
be appointed to this Board/Commission or Committee.

2. The Town Manager will review your application, may contact you, and
determine any potential conflict of interests.

3. This application will be forwarded to the Select Board for consideration, the
Board will want to interview possible appointees. Your application will be
placed on the next available agenda,

4. Appointee agrees to take a sworn oath by Town Clerk except for Ad Hoc
Committee members/BoS Advisory Committees.

5. Applicant agrees that if appointed will attend all meetings, except for
sickness or emergency, and will advise the Chairperson when you are unable
to attend.

Please read the attached Town of Eliot, Maine Ordinance Governing
Mounicipal Boards. Commissions and Committees.

SIGNATURE OF APPLICANT DATE

Rev.07/21/2017



Y2 offer conneckons  fhaf only enhance fhe
K/tm,(fh/ of~ Live in +he later \ears. -



TOWN MANAGER'S REPORT

Select Board Meeting October 14, 2021

American Recovery Plan Act (ARPA) — The Town has received the first installment of the ARPA funds
which the Select Board is accepting the grant funds. The Town now needs to thoroughly consider the
best uses for spending the funds. | recently attended the MMA session regarding this and there is wide
latitude on uses. The Town must complete a Project and Expenditure Report that will cover the period
between award date and March 31, 2022, that will be due on April 30, 2022(this deadline was recently
extended from October 31, 2021). | encourage the Board to review the many eligible uses listed on the
MMA website. In August | initially provided the Select Board with some varied options to think about,
however, the uses now seem to be expanded and | encourage you to evaluate some potential uses in
the next several weeks. The Town previously did not provide any additional compensation to some key
town personnel who worked non-stop throughout COVID issues and offices being closed, so one option
is to provide some funds to those who expanded their role for a period of time. The Town desires to
expand economic development opportunities and some funds could be expended for a very positive
economic development marketing program that would bring both businesses, jobs and help the
economy in Eliot.

Budget — Town departments are commencing working on budgets in preparation for meeting with the
Treasurer and Town Manager.

Union Contracts — The Negotiation Teams continue to meet and work on finalizing the Teamsters Public
Works Contract and Police MAP Contract.

Route 236 Corridor Study — A Public Information Meeting was recently held on September 28. The study
was conducted in partnership with Southern Maine Planning and Development Commission (SMPDC). It
explored improving conditions for people to walk and bike in Eliot and potential traffic options were
presented. The meeting included people both in-person as well as Zoom presence for participation. It
was very informative, and | encourage anyone who could not attend to view the recorded meeting.

Senior Property Tax Assistance Program - This is the first year of this program that provides property
tax assistance to qualifying persons who reside in Eliot. The program may provide tax rebate and rental
rebate payments. The criteria includes that the applicant must have a homestead in the town for ten
continuous years; has received a tax credit under the provisions of the State Property Tax Fairness Credit
Program; must be 70 years of age or older along with some other requirements for property owners.
The deadline for applying is November 1, 2021.



Eliot Fall Road Litter Cleanup — Saturday October 23" from 11 -2 {rain date, October 24) Volunteers are
needed to help beautify Eliot! This is sponsored by the Conservation Commission and Southern Maine
Stormwater Working Groups. Assistance is appreciated!

Eliot Trick-or-Treat Night — This is scheduled for Saturday, October 30 from 5 — 8 p.m. Stay Safe!

Election — November 2 - There will be a State of Maine Referendum Election and Special Town
Referendum Election. Polling hours at 8 am — 8 pm and heled at Marshwood Middle School Gymnasium.
Absentee ballots are now available and can be requested from the Town Clerk’s Office. The deadline for
absentee ballots is Thursday, October 28,

2022 Dog Licensing — Dog licenses are issued by calendar year and expire December 31. Effective
October 15 on-line dog licensing will be available.

Respectfully submitted,

ol

Caral M. Granfield, ICMA-CM
Interim Town Manager




Staff Report
- American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) Grant Acceptance

August 26, 2021

Background: The American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) provides an important infusion of funds to
municipalities to buffer the impacts of COVID on our municipal revenue and activities. Eliot is
to receive $729,593.96 in funds over two years.

Issue: To accept the grant funds.

Discussion:

The first installment has been received by the Town with a check in the amount of $364,796.98
which will be placed in an interest-bearing account. The second half of the funds will be
received next year.

Fiscal Impact: This will provide additional funds for a variety of COVID related impact items.

Recommendation: It is recommended action be taken to accept the funds. A sample motion is
provided: “ MOTION to accept the ARPA Funds in the total amount of $729,593.96 which shall
be paid over a two year period.”

Carol M, Granfield, IcMA-CM
Interim Town Manager




DocuSign Envelope ID: CE40D166-1508-47F2-837C-E6BE 18953370 o
Eliot A / P Warrant @RREMW@HHH&&-E #ﬁ %’6/'22{)_21

4:28 PM 8’- FTIJ?%Eﬁ)%ﬁHm Page 1
Warrant 23 v " -
Jrnl Check Month Invoice Description Reference
Description Account Proj Amount Encumbrance
00002 2WAY COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE, INC.
0137 19517 09 printer set up 68368
printer set up E 30-01-24-30 31.25 0.00
Invoice Total- 31.25
0137 18517 09 new comp TC CEC PLNR TRSR 70343
new comp TC CEQ PLNR TRSR E 62-05-99-01 6,180.99 0.00
Invoice Total- 6,180.99
0137 19517 09 new technoleogy town off 70342
new tech town off E 62-05-99-01 931.28 0.00
Invoice Total- 931.28
0137 19517 09 August account activity 70314
town office E 01-01-24-30 1,750.00 0.00
police dept E 10-05-10-14 740.00 0.00
highway E 20-01-20-40 250.00 0.00
Involice Total- 2,740.00
0137 19517 08 account activity august P 70313
datto backups/email/365 E 10-05-10-14 551,82 0.00
Invoice Total- 551.82
Vendor Total- 10,435.34
00069 BEN'S UNLFORMS,INC.
0137 19518 09 uniforms PD 098646
uniforms PD E 10-05-03-15 18.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 18.00
00109 CENTRAL MAINE POWER
0137 18519 09 cmp police dept 700000354364
cnp police dept B 10-05-15-02 21.47 0.00
Vendor Total- 21.47
00131 COMCAST
6137 19520 09 phones C5D 082021
phones csd E 20-01-15-03 170.39 0.00
Vendor Total- 170.39
0388 MainePERS
0137 82021 09 MainePERS August 082021
admin E 01-01-03-40 1,504.51 0,00
clerks E 01-02-03-40 1,666,994 0.00
land use E 01-03-03-40 1,418.76 0.00
police B 10-05-03-40 - 7,118.70 0.00
pub works E 20-01-03-40 2,071.74 0.00
csd E 30-01-03-40 882.186 0.00
es contributions G 01-2215~-00 9,657.34 0.00
Vendor Total- 24,320.15
0C444 MAINE TOWN & CITY CLERK'S ASSN
0137 19521 09 training- Dave 1000410886
trainin- Dave E 01-02-03-05 60.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 60.00
00445 MUNICTIPAL CODE CORPORATION
0137 19522 09 records preservation 00362779
records preservation E 62-05-29-01 4,121.00 0.00
Vendeor Total=- 4,121.00

00617 SANEL MAPA
0137 19523 09 vehicle rep/maint 310549



DocuSign Envelope [D: CE40D166-1508-47F2-837C-EGBE 16953370

Bliot A / P Warrant 09/16/2021
4:28 M Page 2
Warrant 23
Jrnl Check Month Invoice Description Reference
Dezcription Account Proj Amount Encumbrance
vehicle rep/maint E 10-05-24-15 20.27 0.00
Vendor Total- 20.27
00619 S.A.D, # 35
0137 18524 a9 school pyament september 082021
school payment september E 60-01-959-30 876,559.93 0.00
Vendor Total- 876,559.93
00625 SEACCAST MEDIA GROUP
01371 185256 09 pub hearing notices 08312021
pub hearing notices E 05-05-50-45 902.50 0.00
Vandor Total- 902,50
00686 TMDE CALIBRATION LABS, INC.
0137 15526 09 vehicle rep/maint 42788
vehicle rep/maint E 10-05~-24-15 650.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 650.00
COT7L7 TOWN OF KITTERY, MAINE
0137 19527 09 fuel bill pd 09022021
fuel bill PD E 10-05-20-15 775,21 0.00
Vendor Total- 775.21
G0725 TREASURER CF STATE
0137 19528 09 bmv 0831-09%09 0831-0909
bmv 0831-0909 G 01-2040~00 38,071.03 0,00
Vandor Total- 38,071.03
0081l6 IRVING OIL MARKETING, INC.
0137 18529 IE} fuel bill pub works 34122199
fuel bill pub works E 20-10-20-15 215.73 0.040
Invoice Total- 219.73
0137 18529 09 fuel bill PD 34122195
fuel bill PD L 10-05-20-15 45.7% 0.00
Invoice Total- 45.77
Vandor Total- 265,50
00006 W.B. MASON COMPANY, INC.
0137 185390 08 printer ribbons 222833584
printer ribbons E 01-01-20-40 21.00 0.00
Invoice Total- 21,00
0137 19530 Qg supplies pub works 40151461
pub works E 20-01-20-40 26547 .00
building supply E 20-01-20-20 24,54 0.00
Invoice Total- 290.01
0137 15530 09 office supplies BN 222837036
office supplies PD E 10-05-20-40 63.76 0.00
Invoica Total-~ 63,76
0137 19530 09 supplies PD 222697778
supplies PD E 10-05-20-40 1G3.85 0.00
Invoice Teotal- 103.95
0137 19530 08 water for PD 223009623
walter for PD % 10-05-20-41 47.88 0.00
Invoice Total- 47.88
Vendor Total- 526.60

01006 ME. MUNICIPAT, EMPLOYEE HEALTH TRUST

0137 15531 08

health insurance october

102021



CocuSign Envelope ID: CE40D166-1508-47F2-837C-E88E16953370

mliot A / P Warrant 09/16/2021
4:28 PM Page 3
Warrant 23
Jrnl Check Month Invoice Description Reference
Description Account Proj Amount Encumbrance
admin E 01-01-03-10 2,123.81 0.00
clerks E 01-02-03-01 1,071,44 0.00
land use E 01-03-03-10 1,076.03 0.00
pub works E 20-01-03-10 61,66 0.00
pelice E 10-05-03-10 15,877.01 0.00
o)) E 30-01-03-10 4,814.57 0.00
ee contributions G 01-2230-00 4,785.04 0.00
Vendor Total- 29,819,.56
01007 ELIOT SMALL ENGINE REPAIR, INC,
0137 19532 09 equipment /grass seed 08312021
aquipment rep/maint E 20-01-24-10 190.00 0.00
topscil seed E 20-01-22-46 309.87 0.00
Vandor Total- 489.87
01044 York Region Chamber of Uommerce
0137 18533 09 annual dues Junezl-15
annual dues E 30-01-03-05 230.00 0.00
Vendor Total~ 230.00
01323 RED'S SHOE BARN
0137 19534 Q9 uniforms PD 21-080025
uniforms PD E 10-(5-03-15 247,99 0.09
Vendor Total- 247.99
01329 YORK POLICE DEPARTMENT
0137 19535 09 PSAP fees FY22-Eliot
PSAP fees E 10-30-10-36 22,330.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 22,330.00
01368 VILLAGE MOTORS SERVICE CENTER
0137 15536 09 vehicle rep/maint 54099
vehicle rep/maint E 10-05-24-15 99.12 0.00
Invoice Total- 99,12
0137 15536 as vehicle rep/maint 53864
vehicle xep/maint E 10-05-24-15 84.94 0.00
Inveoice Total- 84.94
Vendor Total- 184.06
01418 SPRINT
0137 19537 09 cell phones CSD 082021
cell phones C3D E 30-01-03-12 224.20 0,00
Vandor Total- 224.20
01794 MAINE ASSOCIATION OF POLICE
0137 19538 09 union dues pd 8130
union dues PD G 01-2235-00 240.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 240.00
01858 Pitney Bowes
0137 18539 09 posltage machine PD 3314124143
postage machine PD E 10-05-10-14 85.¢81 0.00
Vendor Total- 95.91
01916 RCRTH COAST SERVICES, LLC
0137 19540 09 recycling fees 34836
recycling fees E 20-25-06-55 187.74 0.00
Vandor Total- 187.74
02475 Leaf
0137 19541 09 copiers town office 12288562



DocuSign Envelope ID: CE40D166-1508-47F2-837C-EB8E 16953370

Eliot A / P Warrant 09/16/2021
4:28 PM Page 4
Warrant 23
Jranl Check Month Involce Description Reference
Description Account Proj Amount Encumbrance
copiers town office E 01-01-10-30 754.6% 0.00
Vendor Total- 754,66
02824 The Goodyear Tire & Rubber Co.
0137 19542 03 tires pub works 068-1075388
tires pub works E 20-01-24-80 165.50 0.00
Vendor Total- la5.50
02863 Municipal Resources, Inc.
0137 19543 09 town manager services 22421
town manager services E 01-01-C1-01 12,160.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 12,160.00
02888 AT&T Mobllity
0137 19544 08 ¢ell phones PD 08zezoz21
cell phones PD E 10-05-03-12 389.36 0.00
Vendor Total-~ 385.86
02902 Brendon Crosby
0137 19545 09 reimb for physical 09032021
reimb for physical E 30-01-03-05 100.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 100.00
Prepaid Total- 24,320.15
Current Total- 1,000,236.59
EFT Total- .00
Warrant Total- 1,024,556.74
WE THE SELECTMEN OF THE TOWN OF ELIOT AUTHORIZE THE TOWN TREASURER
Jordan Miles TC PAY THE INVOICES ON THIS WARRANT.
= DocuSigned by: RocuSigned by:
s dvss P i [ avacn, Dovo
Kfﬁg_owsm&badzommm LAUREN Doue\m-oacgﬁsawms...
= [reouSigned by: o DosuSignad by:
_ 1K | Yol it N{Pfumm
RICHAR ROBERT MCRUERSMMoninooier..

WILLIAM.MEBRocrerraoacs..




DocuSign Envelope | D: 00CBD07B-8AB3-40B5-A70A-FOD67385A857

Eliot A / P Warrant g&%ﬂmﬁwﬁnﬁﬁ% IW/-—;EZ"GZZ—-
3:16 PM ¢ l ’2£3 Page 1
Warrant 25
Jrnl Check Month Invoice Description Reference
Description Account Proj Amount Encumbrance
00072 BERNSTEIN, SHUR, SAWYER & NELSON
0145 19546 09 general labor advice 3678647
general labor advice E 01-01-10-02 440,00 G¢.00
Vendor Total- 440,00
00109 CENTRAL MAINE POWER
0146 19548 09 cmp main st 700000354367
cp maln st E 70-10-15-02 21,47 0.00
Invoice Total- 21.47
0146 158548 09 cmp dixon ave 700000354369
cmp dixon ave E 70-15-15-02 16.8¢6 0.00
Invoice Total- 16.86
0146 19548 0g crp pleasant st 700000354365
cmp pleasant st E 70-05-15-02 21.47 0.00
Invoice Total-~ 21.47
0146 19548 09 cmp Harold L Dow TRF 700000355094
cmp Harold L Dow TRE E 20-25-15-02 16.86 0.00
Invoice Total- 16.86
0146 19548 09 HL Dow HWY 700000355090
HL dow HWY E 20-25-15-02 21.47 0.00
Invoice Total- 21.47
0146 19548 09 cmp Old RD 700000355088
comp ©ld RD E 20-10-15-02 16.86 0.00
Invoice Total- 16,86
0146 19548 09 cmp River Road 7000003550083
omp River Reoad E 20-10-15-02 16.86 0.00
Invoice Total- 16,86
0146 19548 08 cmp greenacres rd 7100000355091
cmp greenacres rd B 20-1.0-15-02 16.86 .00
Invoice Total- 16.86
01lda 19548 09 cmp i1 dixen rd TOC0O00355097
cmp 11 dixon road E 20-10-15-02 16.86 0.00
Invoice Total- l6.86
0146 19548 a9 cmp Route 236 700000354372
cmp Route 236 I 10-30-15-02 16.8¢6 0,00
Invoice Total- 16.86
0146 19548 09 cmp New Kittery Road 700000354371
cip New Kittery Read E 10-30-15-02 16,86 0.00
Invoice Total- 16.86
0148 19548 09 cmp Route 236 Road 706000354370
cinp Route 236 Read E 10-30-15-02 16.86 0.00
Invoice Total- l6.88
0146 19548 09 cmp 468 H L Dow HWY 700000354362
cop 468 HL dow HWY E 10-30-15-02 21.47 0.00
Inveice Total- 21.47
0l4s 19548 09 cmp cor state/bolthill »d 700000355095
cip cor state/bolthill rd E 10-30-15-02 16.86 0.00
Invoice Total- 16.8¢
0144 18548 09 cmp route 236-beech rd 700000355092
cmp route 236-beech xd E 10-30-15-02 16.86 0.00
Inveice Total~- l6.86
0146 19548 09 cmp RTE 236 garage 700000355089



DocuSign Envelope |D: 0C6D07B-8AB3-40B5-A79A-FID67386A057

Eliot A / P Warrant 09/22/24021
3:16 PM Page 2
Warrant 25
Jrnl Check Month Invoice Desgription Reference
Description Account Proj Amount Encumbrance
cmp RTE 236 garage E 20-01-15-02 16.86 0.00
Inveoice Total- 16.86
Vendor Total- 288.20
00265 HAYDER'S PEST-FREE MANAGEMENT , INC,
0146 19549 09 exterminator 162443
exterminator E 20-25-24-20 50.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 50.00
00340 RITTERY WATER DISTRIOT
0146 19550 09 water bill TO 6115 101321
water bill TO E 01-01-15-04 106.21 0.00
Inveice Total- 106.21
0146 19550 0% water bill TO 3529 101321
water bill TO E 01-01-15-04 92,30 0.00
Invoice Total- 92,30
0146 18550 09 water bill fire dept 3528 101321
water bill fire dept E 10-01-15-04 36.65 0.00
Invoice Total- 36.65
0l4e 19550 09 water bill boat basin 3459 101321
water bill beat basin E 20-10-15-04 92.30 0.00
Invoice Total- 92.30
0146 18550 09 water bill pleasant st 4281 101321
water bill pleasant st E 70-05-25-10 36.65 0.00
Invoice Total- 36.65
0146 19550 Q9 water bill main st 3345 101321
water bill main st E 70-10-25-10 36,65 0.00
Inveice Total- 36.65
Vendor Total- 403.76
00725 TREASURER OF STATE
0146 19551 09 bmv 0909-0914 0908-0916
bmv 0909-0914 G 01-2040-00 27,559,541 0.00
Vendor Total- 27,959 54
00885 ELDREDGE LUMEER AND HARDWARE
0146 18552 09 supplies pub works 09152021
supplies pub works E 20-01-24-20 11.6% 0.00
Invoice Total- 11.69
0146 19552 09 youth athletics supplies 203438
supplies youth athletics E 320-09%-03-05 6.29 0.00
Invoica Total- 6.29
Vendor Total- 17.98
01467 LIBBY-SCOTT, INC.
0146 18553 09 Paving Beat Ramp 521006
paving boat ramp E 62-05-99-01 2,588.61 ¢.00
Inveice Total- 2,588.61
0146 19553 09 Paving Lelghton Lane 521005
paving leighton lane n $2-05-99-01 12,203.2¢ 0.Q0
Invoice Total- 12,203.29
0l46 18553 09 Paving Jennie Lane 521007
Pavign Jennie Lane E 62-05-99-01 1,229.25 0.00
Invoice Total- 1,229.25
Vandor Total- 16,021.15
01658 ATLANTIC RECYCLING EQUIPMENT, LLC



DocuSign Envelope 1D: 00CED07B-8AB3-4DB5-A79A-FIDE7I85A057

BEliot A / P Warrant 08/22/2021
3:16 PM Page 3
Warrant 25
Jrnl Check Month Invoice Description Reference
Description Account Proj Amount Encumbrance
0146 19554 0s eguipment rep/maint 66740
equipment rep/maint E 20-25-24-10 6,850,00 0,00
Vendor Total- 6,85C.00
01719 SEACOAST FIRST AID & SAFETY, INC.
0146 19555 09 supplies 26037
supplies E 20-01-24-05 47.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 47.00
01911 ALTERNATIVE COMMUNICATIONS SERVICE
0146 19556 09 set up phone health off. 48383
set up phone for healthef E 01-01-15-03 120.00 0.00
Vandor Total~ 120.00
02015 HEATWAVE OIL, LLC_
0146 19557 09 #2 fuel 280929
#2 fuel E 20-01-15-01 118.77 0.00
Invoica Total~ 118,77
0146 19557 09 diesel fuel 280928
diesel fuel E 20-01-20-10C 1.445.06 0.00
Invoice Total- 1,445.06
Vandor Total- 1,563.83
02034 Election Systems & Software
0148 18558 49 ballots november 21 cp2008347
ballots november 21 E 15-15-05-26 T47.36 0.00
Vendor Total- 747.36
026394 Haps Cleaning
01485 19559 a9 cleaning bathrcoms 208
cleaning BB bathrocms E 30-04-03-05 2,960.00 0.00
Vendoyr Total- 2,560,00
02903 Shu Williams
0146 19560 09 kidsplay refund 09202021
kidsplay refund R 8Z-01-01 246.00 0.00
Vendor Total- 246,00
Prepaid Total- 0.00
Current Total- 57,714.82
ERFT Total- 0.00
Warrant Total- 57,714.82

WhE THE SELECTMEN OF THE TOWN OF ELIOT AUTHORIZE THE TOWN TREASURER
Jordan Miles TO PAY THE INVOICES ON THIS WARRANT.

DocuSigned by:

L annen, Dowo

DasuSigned by:
[’Eb,gom.,lm& B s

LAUREN Doh-—-odcgﬁsmmassw

ALEX a2k S0eacR4F0, .
RICHATD— DONHATEBR
(.(Jklulvh‘?\f’\ (J }‘_’l_/}l 5t

DocuBignad by:
| N :‘;e%

ROBERT MChHEEﬁ@ﬂﬁcmmmeﬁ..

WILL IM’&@BEGFFFMDACB..,



Eliot Board, Committee, and Commission Positions Available (posted 10/05/2021)

Board, Committee or Commission

Regular/Alternate Member

# of Paositions

Term Expiration

|
|
|

Aging-In-Place Regular Member 1 June 2023
Alternate Member 1 June 2023
Capital Improvement Committee Regular Member 1 June 2022
Regular Member I June 2023
Regular Member 1 June 2024
Conservation Commission Regular Member 1 June 2022
Alternate Member 1 June 2022
Alternate Member 1 June 2024
Planning Board Alternate Member 1 June 2022
Alternate Member 1 June 2025

If you would like information about the Boards, Committees, and Commissions, contact Carol Granfield,
Interim Town Manager at the Town Office by phone 207-439-1813 ext. 107 or by email

townmanager@eliotme.org




	Agenda 10-14-2021
	Item C-1  PH CatLab
	Item C-2 PH Warrant Articles for 11/02/2021
	Approval of Minutes 9/9/2021
	Item E-1  Audit Presentation 
	Item E-2 Feasibility Study 
	Item E-3 Non-Union Salary Market Analysis
	Item F-1 Assessing Update
	Item F-2 Appointment to Aging-In-Place Committee
	Item F-3 Town Manager's Report 
	Item F-4 American Rescue Plan Act- grant acceptance
	Item # I-1 A/P Warrant # 23 in the amount of $1,024,556.74
	Item # I-2 A/P Warrant #25 in the amount of $57,714.82
	Item # J-1 Committee/Boards/ Commission Vacancy Listing



